
MENDOCINO 
Local Agency Formation Commission 

Ukiah Valley Conference Center | 200 South School Street | Ukiah, California 95482 
Telephone: (707) 463-4470 | E-mail:  eo@mendolafco.org | Web: www.mendolafco.org 

 

March 6, 2023                  Page 1 of 3 

 

COMMISSIONERS 
 
Maureen Mulheren, Chair 
County Member 
 
Gerald Ward, Vice-
Chair/Treasurer 
Public Member 
 

Gerardo Gonzalez 
City Member 
 
Candace Horsley Elected 
Special District Member 
 
Glenn McGourty 
County Member 
 
Mari Rodin 
City Member 
 

Vacant 
Special District Member 
 

Francois Christen, Alternate 
Special District Member 
 

Douglas Crane, Alternate 
City Member 
 

John Haschak, Alternate 
County Member 
 
Richard Weinkle, Alternate 
Public Member 
 

 
STAFF 
 
Executive Officer 
Uma Hinman 
 

Clerk/Analyst 
Larkyn Feiler 
 

Counsel 
Scott Browne 
 
 
REGULAR MEETINGS 
First Monday of each month 
at 9:00 AM in the  
Mendocino County  
Board of Supervisors 
Chambers 
501 Low Gap Road, Ukiah 

 

A G E N D A 
 

Regular Meeting of Monday, March 6, 2023 at 9:00 AM  
County Board of Supervisors Chambers 501 Low Gap Road, Ukiah, California 

Special Notice – Hybrid Meeting 
As of March 1, 2023, the new teleconferencing rules under AB 2449 take effect, which 
allow for teleconferencing participation at local legislative body public meetings under 
specific circumstances. The Commission will conduct its March 6, 2023 meeting in a 
hybrid format to accommodate both in-person and remote (video or telephone) 
participation by the public and its staff members pursuant to GOV 54953. Unless 
approved under the provisions of AB 2449, Commissioners will attend in-person. The 
Commission’s hybrid meeting can be accessed by the public in person, or remotely as 
described in the Instructions for Remote Participation Option, below.  
 

The meeting will be held in the County Board of Supervisors Chambers at 501 Low Gap 
Road, Ukiah. Social distancing practices are recommended whenever possible and seating 
is arranged to accommodate the six feet recommended by the Health Officer. 

 

Instructions for Remote Participation Option  

Join Meeting Live: Please click the following Zoom link below to join the meeting or 
utilize the telephone option for audio only.  
1. Zoom meeting link: https://mendocinocounty.zoom.us/j/83492390471 
2. Telephone option (audio only):  

Dial: (669) 900-9128 (Please note that this is not a toll-free number) 
Meeting ID: 834 9239 0471 

 

Public Participation is encouraged and public comments are accepted:  
1. Live: via the Zoom meeting link or telephone option above 
2. Via Email: eo@mendolafco.org by 8:30 a.m. the day of the meeting 
3. Via Mail: Mendocino LAFCo, 200 S School Street, Ukiah, CA 95482 

 

Meeting Participation 
To provide comments, please use the raise hand function in Zoom.  
a) For those accessing from a computer, tablet, or smartphone, the raise hand function 

may be selected by clicking or tapping it from the reactions options. When joining the 
Zoom meeting, please enter your name so that you can be identified to speak. 

b) For those utilizing the telephone option (audio only), please use the raise hand 
feature by pressing *9 on your keypad to raise your hand, and *6 to unmute yourself. 
When it is your turn to speak, you will be called on by the last four digits of your phone 
number, if available, and asked to identify yourself for the record.  

All comments received will be conveyed to the Commission for consideration during the 
meeting. All meetings are live-streamed, recorded and available through the link below. 

Live web streaming and recordings of Regular Commission meetings are available via the 
Mendocino County YouTube Channel. Links to recordings, approved minutes, and meeting 

documents are available on the LAFCo website.     

 

Pg 1 of 130

mailto:eo@mendolafco.org
http://www.mendolafco.org/
https://mendocinocounty.zoom.us/j/83492390471
mailto:eo@mendolafco.org
http://www.youtube.com/MendocinoCountyVideo
https://www.mendolafco.org/commission-meetings


March 6, 2023                  Page 2 of 3 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER and ROLL CALL 
 

2. PUBLIC EXPRESSION 
The Commission welcomes participation in the LAFCo meeting. Any person may address the Commission on any 
subject within the jurisdiction of LAFCo which is not on the agenda. There is a three-minute limit and no action will 
be taken at this meeting. See public participation information above. 

 
3. OTHER BUSINESS 

3a) Announcement of Commission Appointments and Oath of Office 
Announcement of the County Board of Supervisors’ and the City Selection Committee appointments to the 
Commission, and Special District Election results. The Oath of Office will be administered to Special District 
representative Candace Horsley and City Alternate Douglas Crane. 

3b) Selection of Officers and Committee Appointments 
The Commission will vote on officers for 2023 and the elected Chair will make appointments to the Executive 
Committee and Policies & Procedures Committee. 
 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 
The following consent items are expected to be routine and non-controversial and will be acted on by the 
Commission in a single action without discussion, unless a request is made by a Commissioner or a member of the 
public for discussion or separate action. 
4a) January 9, 2023 Regular Meeting Summary 
4b) Ratify the January 2023 Claims & Financial Report 
4c) February 2023 Claims & Financial Report 
4d) Fiscal Year 2021-22 Audit 
4e) Renewal of Office Space Lease in the Ukiah Valley Conference Center  
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 
5a) PUBLIC HEARING Ford Road, Kunzler Ranch Road, and Carter Lane Out-of-Agency Services Agreement Area 
for Wastewater Services from the City of Ukiah and Ukiah Valley Sanitation District (File No. O-2022-03) and 
Finding of Exemption Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act 
The Commission will hold a Public Hearing to consider adoption of the Ford Road, Kunzler Ranch Road, and Carter 
Lane Out-of-Agency Services Agreement Area application (File No. O-2022-03) from the City of Ukiah and Ukiah 
Valley Sanitation District to provide wastewater services to 12-parcels (170-200-03, 170-200-04, 170-200-05, 170-
200-06, 170-200-07, 170-200-08, 170-200-09, 170-200-18, 170-180-08, 170-180-13, 170-180-14, 169-130-76). 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: (1) Find the Ford Road, Kunzler Ranch Road, and Carter Lane Out-of-Agency Services 
Agreement Area for Wastewater Services from the City of Ukiah and Ukiah Valley Sanitation District is exempt from 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under the General Rule Exemption pursuant to Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations (14 CCR) §15061(b)(3), and approve the Notice of Exemption for filing; and (2) Adopt 
LAFCo Resolution 2022-23-09, conditionally approving the Ford Road, Kunzler Ranch Road, and Carter Lane Out-of-
Agency Services Agreement Area for Wastewater Services from the City of Ukiah and Ukiah Valley Sanitation District 
(File No. O-2022-03). 
 

6. WORKSHOP ITEMS 
None 
 

7. MATTERS FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
7a) Draft Policy for Commissioner Teleconferencing 
The Commission will consider recommendations of the Policies & Procedures Committee for a draft policy 
implementing AB 2449 rules regarding commissioner teleconferencing. 
 
7b) Mid-Year Budget and Work Plan Report 
The Commission will receive the Executive Officer’s report on the mid-year budget and work plan status for fiscal 
year 2022-2023.  

Pg 2 of 130



March 6, 2023                  Page 3 of 3 

 
8. INFORMATION AND REPORT ITEMS 

The following informational items are reports on current LAFCo activities, communications, studies, legislation, and 
special projects. General direction to staff for future action may be provided by the Commission. No immediate 
action will be taken on any of the following items. 
8a) Work Plan, Current and Future Proposals (Written) 
8b) Correspondence (Copies provided upon request) 
8c) CALAFCO Business and Legislative Report 
8d) Executive Officer’s Report (Verbal) 
8e) Committee Reports (Executive Committee, Policies & Procedures, Work Plan Ad Hoc) (Verbal) 
8f) Commissioner Reports, Comments or Questions (Verbal) 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
The next Regular Commission Meeting is tentatively scheduled for Monday, April 3, 2023 at 9:00 AM in the  

County Board of Supervisors Chambers at 501 Low Gap Road, Ukiah. 
 
 

Notice: This agenda has been posted at least 72 hours prior to the meeting and in accordance with the Brown Act Guidelines and 
teleconferencing rules under AB 2449.  

Participation on LAFCo Matters: All persons are invited to testify and submit written comments to the Commission on public hearing 
items. Any challenge to a LAFCo action in Court may be limited to issues raised at a public hearing or submitted as written comments 
prior to the close of the public hearing. 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Compliance: Commission meetings are held via a hybrid model – the in-person option held in 
a wheelchair accessible facility and also by teleconference. Individuals requiring special accommodations to participate in this 
meeting are requested to contact the LAFCo office at (707) 463-4470 or by e-mail to eo@mendolafco.org. Notification 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the Commission to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. If 
attending by teleconference, if you are hearing impaired or otherwise would have difficulty participating, please contact the LAFCo 
office as soon as possible so that special arrangements can be made for participation, if reasonably feasible. 

Fair Political Practice Commission (FPPC) Notice: State Law requires that a participant in LAFCo proceedings who has a financial 
interest in a Commission decision and who has made a campaign contribution to any Commissioner in the past year must disclose 
the contribution. If you are affected, please notify the Commission before the hearing. 

Pg 3 of 130

mailto:eo@mendolafco.org


Agenda Item No. 3a 
 

MENDOCINO 
Local Agency Formation Commission 

 
Staff Report 

DATE:  March 6, 2023 

TO:  Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission  

FROM:  Uma Hinman, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Announcement of Commission Appointments and Oath of Office 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION  
Announcement of Special District Election results and Commission appointments made by the County 
Board of Supervisors and City Selection Committee; administer the oath of office to new Commissioners 
Candace Horsley and Douglas Crane. 
  

BACKGROUND  
Per GOV 56334, all LAFCo commissioners serve four-year terms. The County Board of Supervisors and City 
Selection Committee meet and make annual appointments. The Mendocino County Board of Supervisors 
met in January and affirmed the appointment of current County members for 2023. 
 
The Mendocino County City Selection Committee  met on February 1. Appointments included Mari Rodin 
(City of Ukiah) and Gerardo Gonzalez (City of Willits) to serve as Regular City Members, and Douglas Crane 
(City of Ukiah) was appointed as the Alternate City Member.  
 
The Special District Election ended on January 16, 2023 and a quorum of special district ballots was 
received. Candace Horsley was elected as the Regular Special District Member for the term 2023-2026. 
 

2023 Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission 

Representative Seat Year Sworn In 
Current Term 

Beginning 
Term Ending 
(December) 

County     

Glenn McGourty Regular 2021 2021 2024 

Maureen Mulheren Regular 2021 2021 2026 

John Haschak Alternate 2020 2020 2023 

City     

Gerardo Gonzalez Regular 2019 2023 2026 

Mari Rodin Regular 2021 2022 2025 

Douglas Crane Alternate  2022 2025 

Special District     

Candace Horsley Regular  2023 2026 

Vacant Regular  2021 2024 

Francois Christen Alternate 2023 2023 2026 

Public     

Gerald Ward Regular 2015 2023 2026 

Richard Weinkle Alternate 2020 2020 2023 

 

Pg 4 of 130



Agenda Item No. 3b 
 

MENDOCINO 
Local Agency Formation Commission 

 
Staff Report 

DATE:  March 6, 2023 

TO:  Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission  

FROM:  Uma Hinman, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Selection of Officers and Appointments to Committees 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

a) The Commission will select a Chair, Vice-Chair and Treasurer for the 2023 calendar year.  
b) The Chair will make appointments to the Executive and Policies and Procedures Committees 

with ratification by the full Commission. 
 

BACKGROUND 
Officers 
Per LAFCo Policy 3.5, the members of the Commission will elect a Chair, Vice-Chair and Treasurer at the 
first meeting of the Commission of each year or as soon thereafter as possible.  

2022 Officers of the Commission 

Office Commissioner Representation 

Chair Maureen Mulheren County 

Vice-Chair Gerald Ward Public 

Treasurer Gerald Ward Public 

 
Standing Committees 
Per LAFCo Policy 3.9, the Commission has two standing committees: the Executive Committee and the 
Policies and Procedures Committee. The committees meet on an as-needed basis and are subject to the 
requirements of the Brown Act.  

The Executive Committee consists of the Chair, Vice Chair, and Treasurer or a third Commissioner 
appointed by the Chair. The Executive Committee is responsible for administrative oversight, personnel 
matters, and budget preparation and review.  

The Policies and Procedures Committee is made up of three members appointed at the first Commission 
meeting of each calendar year, as recommended by the Chair and ratified by the Commission. The Policies 
and Procedures Committee is responsible for developing local policies and maintaining the Policies and 
Procedures Manual. Revisions are proposed to the full Commission for consideration and adoption.  
 

2022 Executive Committee  2022 Policies & Procedures Committee 

Commissioner Representation  Commissioner Representation 

Maureen Mulheren County  Mari Rodin City (Ukiah) 

Gerald Ward Public  Gerardo Gonzalez City (Willits) 

Vacant   Maureen Mulheren County 

 

Pg 5 of 130

https://www.mendolafco.org/files/fb5741629/FINAL+Adopted+Mendo+LAFCo+PP+Manual+2018+upd+1-4-21.pdf
https://www.mendolafco.org/files/fb5741629/FINAL+Adopted+Mendo+LAFCo+PP+Manual+2018+upd+1-4-21.pdf


M E N D O C I N O 
Local Agency Formation Commission 

Ukiah Valley Conference Center | 200 South School Street | Ukiah, California 95482 
Telephone: (707) 463-4470 | E-mail:  eo@mendolafco.org | Web: http://mendolafco.org 

 

January 9, 2023 

COMMISSIONERS 
 
Maureen Mulheren, Chair 
County Member 
 
Gerald Ward, Vice 
Chair/Treasurer  
Public Member 
 

Glenn McGourty 
County Member 
 
Mari Rodin 
City Member 
 

Vacant 
City Member 
 
Vacant 
Special District Member 
 
Vacant 
Special District Member 
 
Gerardo Gonzales, 
Alternate 
City Alternate Member 
 

John Haschak, Alternate 
County Alternate Member 
 
Richard Weinkle, Alternate 
Public Alternate Member 
 

Francois Christen, Alternate 
Special District Member 
 

 
STAFF 
 
Executive Officer 
Uma Hinman 
 

Clerk/Analyst 
Larkyn Feiler 
 

Counsel 
Scott Browne 
 
 
REGULAR MEETINGS 
First Monday of each month 
at 9:00 AM in the  
Mendocino County  
Board of Supervisors 
Chambers 
501 Low Gap Road, Ukiah 
 

Agenda Item No. 4a 

  DRAFT MINUTES 
Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission  

Regular Meeting (Hybrid) of Monday, January 9, 2023 
County Board of Supervisors Chambers 501 Low Gap Road, Ukiah, California 

1. CALL TO ORDER and ROLL CALL (Video Time 9:22) 
Chair Mulheren called the meeting to order at 9:03 a.m. 

 

Regular Commissioners Present: Maureen Mulheren, Gerald Ward, Glenn McGourty, Mari 
Rodin, Francois Christen (seated at 9:08 a.m. after Oath of Office), and Gerardo Gonzalez 
(immediately seated as a Regular member) 

Regular Commissioners Absent: None 

Alternate Commissioners Present: Richard Weinkle 

Alternate Commissioners Absent: John Haschak 

Staff Present: Uma Hinman, Executive Officer; Larkyn Feiler, Clerk /Analyst; Marsha Burch, 
Legal Counsel 

2. AB 361 REMOTE TELECONFERENCING ACTION (Video Time 10:31) 
The Commission adopted Resolution No. 2022-23-08 making further findings related to 
holding Commission meetings via a hybrid model per Government Code Section 54953(e). 

Motion: Adopt Resolution No. 2022-23-08. 

Motion Maker: Commissioner Ward Motion Second: Commissioner Gonzalez 

Roll Call Vote: Ayes: (5) Ward, McGourty, Rodin, Gonzalez, Mulheren 
 

3. PUBLIC EXPRESSION (Video Time 12:03) 
None 

4. OTHER BUSINESS (Video Time 12:13) 
Note: Item 4b was taken up by the Commission before item 4a.  
 

4b) Oath for Incoming Alternate Special District Member 
Francois Christen was sworn in as the Alternate Special District Member for 2023-2026. 

 

4a) Public Member Representative Appointment 
Gerald Ward was appointed as the Regular Public Member for the term 2023-2026. 
 

Motion: Appoint Gerald Ward as the Regular Public Member. 

Motion Maker: Commissioner Rodin Motion Second: Commissioner McGourty 

Roll Call Vote: Ayes: (6) McGourty, Rodin, Christen, Gonzalez, Ward, Mulheren 
   

4c) Interim Policies and Procedures Committee Appointment 
The Commission made an interim appointment to the Policies and Procedures Committee 
to fill a vacancy on the Committee. 

 

 

Pg 6 of 130

mailto:eo@mendolafco.org


 

January 9, 2023 

Motion: Appoint Mari Rodin to the Policies and Procedures Committee. 

Motion Maker: Commissioner Gonzalez  Motion Second: Commissioner McGourty 

Roll Call Vote: Ayes: (6) Ward, McGourty, Rodin, Christen, Gonzalez, Mulheren 

 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR (Video Time 18:38) 

5a) December 19, 2022 Regular Meeting Summary 
 

5b) December 2022 Claims & Financial Report 

December 2022 Claims totaling: $11,731.68 

Hinman & Associates Consulting                                   8,308.75 

P. Scott Browne 900.00 

Comcast 93.67 

Streamline 50.00 

Ukiah Daily Journal 107.53 

Mendocino County 1,741.73 

Ukiah Valley Conference Center 530.00 
 

Commissioner Ward asked about the delay in receiving invoices from Mendocino County and EO Hinman responded 
that the reason or the delay was unclear and confirmed that multiple invoices were received for time through July. 

Commissioner Ward asked about the status for recruiting a new Clerk, which is a cost savings for tasks such as 
bookkeeping and noted that bookkeeping activities were not reflected in the claims. EO Hinman updated that the 
recruitment for an assistant has not begun and noted that bookkeeping would be accounted for separately next time. 

Commissioner Ward noted that 0.6-hours of Legal Counsel time on application processing should be invoiced to the 
applicant. 

Motion: Approve the consent calendar as amended by Commissioner Ward. 

Motion Maker: Commissioner McGourty Motion Second: Commissioner Gonzalez 

Roll Call Vote: Ayes: (6) Gonzalez, Christen, Rodin, McGourty, Ward, Mulheren 

6. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS Item 6a was pulled based on joint agreement from LAFCo staff and the applicants. 
 

7. WORKSHOP ITEMS None 
 

8. MATTERS FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION None 
 

9. INFORMATION AND REPORT ITEMS  
9a) Work Plan, Current and Future Proposals (Video Time: 22:33) 
EO Hinman presented the staff report, noting that a written summary of the Work Plan and current proposals is 
located on pages 64 – 66 of the Agenda Packet. In summary, all applications are incomplete at this time, pending, 
among other things, tax share agreements. 

The City of Ukiah and Ukiah Valley Sanitation District joint application for an Out-of-Agency Service Agreement (OASA) 
will tentatively be scheduled for a Public Hearing at the February 6 meeting.  

The City of Ukiah Annexation of Western Hills, Elk Community Services District Activation of Latent Powers for 
Wastewater Services, and City of Ukiah Annexation of City-Owned Properties are incomplete pending tax share 
agreements. 

An application is anticipated to be received from the Anderson Valley Community Services District for annexation of 
the District’s Sphere of Influence area for fire services. 

The City of Ukiah and Ukiah Valley Sanitation District final MSR/SOI Updates are posted on the website. 

Pg 7 of 130



 

January 9, 2023 

Commissioner Ward requested an update on the Master Tax Share Agreement process and Chair Mulheren responded 
that all four cities have submitted an agreement proposal, which is being reviewed by County Counsel and will 
tentatively be considered by the Board of Supervisors in the first quarter of 2023. 

9b) Correspondence None 
 
9c) CALAFCO Business and Legislation Report (Video Time: 26:37) 
EO Hinman noted that the current 2022 CALAFCO Cortese Knox Hertzberg (CKH) Guide is now available. 

9d) Executive Officer’s Report (Video Time: 27:05) 
EO Hinman provided the following updates: the deadline to submit ballots for the Special District Election Regular Seat 
term 2023 - 2026 is January 16 at 5 p.m.; the nomination process to fill the remainder of the Regular Special District 
Seat term 2021-2024 will begin soon; Mendocino County is hosting a free Brown Act training on January 25, 2023; and 
the Executive Committee will be meeting after the Commission meeting at 10:30 a.m. in Conference Room B. 

9e) Committee Reports (Executive Committee, Policies & Procedures, Work Plan Ad Hoc) None 

9f) Commissioners Reports, Comments or Questions (Video Time: 28:55) 
Commissioner Ward requested an update on the delay in receiving MUNIS reports regarding account receivables since 
June 2022 from the County Auditor-Controller and Chair Mulheren noted that they have been working on end-of-year 
reporting and suggested that EO Hinman contact the County Executive Office fiscal team for assistance. 

Commissioner Rodin requested a summary of the Special District Commission Seat Nomination/Election process. EO 
Hinman explained that LAFCo staff administers the process on behalf of the Special District Selection Committee, 
which begins with a notice to all districts via certified mail requesting Board of Directors’ nominations. If a single 
nomination is received then that individual is automatically appointed and no election is required. If multiple 
nominations are received, the EO administers the election and a ballot is mailed to each district for Board of Directors’ 
voting and submittal. A quorum of ballots (25 of the 49 independent special districts) is required for a valid election. 
If a quorum is not received, the voting period is automatically extended by 60 days. LAFCo staff sends out reminders 
every two weeks to districts throughout the process, and Commissioners and agency staff are encouraged to assist in 
outreach to districts. 

ADJOURNMENT (Video Time: 34:59)  
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 9:29 a.m. The next regular meeting of the Commission is 
scheduled on Monday, February 6, 2023 at 9:00 a.m. The meeting will be conducted in a hybrid format to accommodate 
both in-person and remote participation. The in-person meeting will be held in the County Board of Supervisors Chambers 
at 501 Low Gap Road, Ukiah.  

Live web streaming and recordings of Commission meetings are available via the County of Mendocino’s YouTube Channel. 
 January 9, 2023, YouTube meeting recording. Links to recordings and approved minutes are also available on the LAFCo website.  

Pg 8 of 130

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=M3e2TbbU8cc&list=PLraKTU7AyZLQNppf0qTlE8FG4pb34zZ0t&index=10
http://www.mendolafco.org/


Agenda Item No.  

MENDOCINO 
Local Agency Formation Commission 

Staff Report 
 

DATE:  March 6, 2023 

TO:  Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission 

FROM:  Uma Hinman, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Claims and Financial Report for January 2023 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Approve the January 2023 claims and financial report. 
 

Name Account Description Amount Total

5300 Basics Services 14,085.00$   

5601 Office Supplies (QB, Adobe Acrobat) 324.88$         

5700 Internet (Comcast) 197.34$         

6200 Bookkeeping 385.00$         

8030 Ukiah/UVSD OASA 3,488.75$      

6300 Legal Counsel (Monthly flat fee) 900.00$         

8030 Ukiah/UVSD OASA 1,305.00$      

6740 In-County Travel & Stipends                      

Weinkle (December, January) 100.00$         

Christen (January) 99.13$           

Pehling (PNP CPA) 6100 Audit Services 1,875.00$       $       1,875.00 

Streamline 5700 Website Hosting 50.00$            $            50.00 

Ukiah Daily Journal
8030 Publications and Legal Notices 

(OASA) 99.59$           
 $            99.59 

5500 Office Space 555.00$         

5600 Postage and copies 22.50$           

Total:  $     23,487.19 

Hinman & Associates 

Consulting, Inc.
 $     18,480.97 

Ukiah Valley Conf. Center  $          577.50 

Commissioner Stipends  $          199.13 

P. Scott Browne  $       2,205.00 

 
 
Deposits:  None 

 
Attachments:  

 Budget Tracking Spreadsheet 

 Work Plan Tracking 
 Invoices: Hinman & Associates Consulting, P. Scott Browne 

 
Please note that copies of all invoices, bank statements, reconciliation reports, and petty cash register were 
forwarded to the Treasurer. 

Pg 9 of 130

Uma Hinman
Typewritten text
4b



Mendocino LAFCo Budget Tracking

REVENUE BUDGET 1st Qtr Subtotal
2nd Qtr 

Subtotal
January February March

3rd Qtr 

Subtotal

4th Qtr 

Subtotal
YTD Subtotal Balance 

4020 OPERATING INCOME (APPORTIONMENTS) 265,000.00$     60,000.00$       60,000.00$    -$                -$                120,000.00$  145,000.00$  

4800 MISCELLANEOUS (SERVICE FEES OH, COPIES) 850.00$             577.34$          2,075.00$       -$                 -$                 2,075.00$       -$                3,502.34$       (3,502.34)$     

4910 INTEREST 100.00$             26.65$               26.38$            2.95$               2.95$              -$                55.98$            44.02$            

Income/Fees Subtotals 265,100.00$     60,876.65$       60,603.72$    2,077.95$       -$                 -$                 

8000 APPLICATIONS
PRIOR FY 

DEPOSITS
 YTD Subtotal 

 Total Deposit 

TD 

8010
City of Ukiah Detachment of UVSD lands (D-2014-

8010) 19,032.75$        -$                   -$                -$                -$                -$                19,032.75$    

8022
City of Ukiah North Annexation Pre-Application (P-

2020-01) 1,500.00$          -$                   -$                -$                -$                -$                1,500.00$       

8024 Millview CWD Annexation Pre-Application (P-2020-04)
3,500.00$          -$                   -$                -$                -$                -$                3,500.00$       

8025
City of Ukiah Annexation of City-Owned Properties (A-

2021-01) 5,000.00$          -$                   -$                -$                -$                -$                5,000.00$       

8028 Elk CSD Activation of Latent Powers (L-2022-01)
3,000.00$          2,000.00$         -$                -$                -$                2,000.00$       5,000.00$       

8029
City of Ukiah Annexation of Western Hills Properties 

(A-2022-02) 5,000.00$          -$                   -$                -$                -$                -$                5,000.00$       

8030
City of Ukiah/UVSD Application for Out Of Agency 

Services  (O-2022-03) -$                   -$                   2,500.00$       -$                -$                2,500.00$       2,500.00$       

8601 Sustainable Ag Lands Committee Grant 3,225.00$          2,525.00$         -$                -$                -$                2,525.00$       5,750.00$       

Application Subtotals 4,525.00$         2,500.00$       -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                7,025.00$       47,282.75$    

REVENUE TOTAL 65,401.65$       63,103.72$    2,077.95$       -$                -$                -$                -$                7,025.00$       

EXPENSES BUDGET 1st Qtr Subtotal
2nd Qtr 

Subtotal
January February March

3rd Qtr 

Subtotal

4th Qtr 

Subtotal

Total 

Expenses YTD

Budget 

Balance

5300 Basic Services - EO/Analyst/Clerk 125,100.00$     21,800.00$       21,565.00$     14,085.00$     14,085.00$     -$                 57,450.00$    67,650.00$     

Unfunded Mandates (Public Records Requests) -$                   -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 

5500 Rent 6,500.00$          1,590.00$          1,590.00$       555.00$          555.00$          -$                 3,735.00$       2,765.00$       

5600 Office Expenses 3,300.00$          1,046.85$          542.18$          347.38$          347.38$          -$                 1,936.41$       1,363.59$       

5700 Internet & Website Costs 2,500.00$          431.01$             431.01$          247.34$          247.34$          -$                 1,109.36$       1,390.64$       

5900 Publication & Legal Notices 2,000.00$          -$                   400.01$          -$                 -$                 400.01$          1,599.99$       

6000 Televising Meetings 2,000.00$          230.10$             501.05$          -$                 -$                 731.15$          1,268.85$       

6100 Audit Services 3,800.00$          1,875.00$          -$                 1,875.00$       1,875.00$       -$                 3,750.00$       50.00$            

6200 Bookkeeping 4,500.00$          1,485.00$          440.00$          385.00$          385.00$          -$                 2,310.00$       2,190.00$       

6300 Legal Counsel (S Browne) 19,000.00$        2,700.00$          2,700.00$       900.00$          900.00$          -$                 6,300.00$       12,700.00$     

6400 A-87 Costs County Services 2,100.00$          -$                   -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                2,100.00$       

6500 Insurance - General Liability 3,200.00$          2,799.92$          -$                 -$                 -$                 2,799.92$       400.08$          

6600 Memberships (CALAFCO/CSDA) 3,700.00$          2,329.00$          1,250.00$       -$                 -$                 3,579.00$       121.00$          

6670 GIS Contract with County 2,000.00$          548.96$             1,240.68$       -$                 -$                 1,789.64$       210.36$          

6740 In-County Travel & Stipends 4,000.00$          -$                   -$                 199.13$          199.13$          -$                 199.13$          3,800.87$       

6750 Travel & Lodging Expenses 6,000.00$          -$                   1,268.52$       -$                 -$                 1,268.52$       4,731.48$       

6800 Conferences (Registrations) 4,100.00$          625.00$             -$                 -$                 -$                 625.00$          3,475.00$       

7000 Work Plan (MSRs and SOIs) 70,000.00$        14,627.50$       8,516.25$       -$                 -$                 23,143.75$    46,856.25$     

Subtotals 263,800.00$     52,088.34$       40,444.70$    18,593.85$    -$                -$                18,593.85$    -$                111,126.89$  

8000 APPLICATIONS
 TOTAL 

DEPOSITS TD 

 Total 

Expenses TD 

 Deposit 

Balance 

8010
City of Ukiah Detachment of UVSD lands (D-2014-

8010) 19,032.75$        -$                   -$                 -$                 -$                 14,518.25$    4,514.50$       

8022
City of Ukiah North Annexation Pre-Application (P-

2020-01) 1,500.00$          -$                   -$                 -$                 -$                 1,122.00$       378.00$          

8024 Millview CWD Annexation Pre-Application (P-2020-04)
3,500.00$          -$                   -$                 -$                 -$                 3,609.50$       (109.50)$         

8025
City of Ukiah Annexation of City-Owned Properties (A-

2021-01) 5,000.00$          120.00$             31.25$            -$                 -$                 3,753.75$       1,246.25$       

8028 Elk CSD Activation of Latent Powers (L-2022-01)
5,000.00$          2,047.50$          516.25$          -$                 -$                 4,236.25$       763.75$          

8029
City of Ukiah Annexation of Western Hills Properties 

(A-2022-02) 5,000.00$          80.00$               -$                 -$                 -$                 250.00$          4,750.00$       

8030
City of Ukiah/UVSD Out of Agency Service Agreement 

(O-2022-03) 2,500.00$          -$                   937.50$          6,968.34$       6,968.34$       -$                 7,905.84$       (5,405.84)$      

8601 Sustainable Ag Lands Committee Grant
5,750.00$          2,525.00$          -$                 -$                 -$                 5,750.00$       -$                 

Contract Staff Billing Subtotal 3,922.50$          922.50$          4,793.75$       4,793.75$       -$                 9,638.75$       6,137.16$       

Service Fees Overhead (OH) Subtotal 850.00$             454.97$          2,075.00$       -$                 -$                 2,075.00$       -$                 3,379.97$       

Application Expenses Total 6,257.50$         1,485.00$       6,968.34$       -$                -$                6,968.34$       -$                14,710.84$    

EXPENSES TOTAL 58,345.84$       41,929.70$    25,562.19$    -$                -$                25,562.19$    -$                125,837.73$  

MONTHLY CLAIMS TOTAL (not including OH fees) 57,495.84$       23,487.19$    -$                -$                

Pg 10 of 130



BUDGET

REVENUE TOTALS 265,100.00$               

Operating Income (Apportions) 265,000.00$                   

Interest 100.00$                          

Miscellaneous -$                                 

Applications & SALC -$                                 

EXPENSES TOTALS 263,800.00$               

Basic Services (Staffing) 125,100.00$                   

Services and Supplies 68,700.00$                     

Work Plan (MSRs and SOIs) 70,000.00$                     

Applications & SALC 

ACCOUNT BALANCES

CASH AVAILABLE

County of Mendocino (Projected; statement unavailable)

Operations (Checking) 

RESERVES

Legal Reserve 

Operations Reserve

CONTINGENCIES

Work Plan

Accounts Total

ACTUAL TO DATE

(57,450.00)$                    

(30,533.14)$                    

(23,143.75)$                    

(14,710.84)$                    

FY 2022-23  YEAR TO DATE  FINANCIAL SUMMARY

209,396$                     

145,000$                        

50,000$                           

356,206$                     

64,396$                           

115,995$                     

65,995$                           

30,815$                        

30,815$                           

127,080.98$                

120,000.00$                   

55.98$                             

7,025.00$                        

(125,837.73)$              

Pg 11 of 130



Coordination/

Request for 

Information

County Service Area 3 Complete Complete 4/4/2022
6/6/2022  

7/11/2022
7/15/2022 $10,000 $16,199 $0 $1,031 $17,230 

Ukiah Valley Sanitation District Ongoing Complete
9/12/2022   

11/7/2022
12/19/2022 12/22/2022 $40,000 $22,703 $10,000 $6,848 $29,551 

City of Ukiah Ongoing Complete
9/12/2022   

11/7/2022
12/19/2022 12/22/2022 $25,000 $8,380 $15,000 $15,265 $23,645 

Inland Water Districts (8) Pending $25,000 $0 $25,000 $0 

Coastal Water Districts (6) Pending $20,000 $0 $20,000 $0 

Estimated Total $70,000 $23,144

2 Column indicates a running total for actual expenses incurred to date for each study in process and is not limited to a specific fiscal year.

Total Cost to 

Date 2

Rolling Work Plan: It is difficult to completely contain staff activities in a single fiscal year; therefore, completion of a study may roll over to the next fiscal year. This estimated work plan implementation schedule and

cost tracking table is intended to enhance communication and transparency.

Agency Admin Draft

Public 

Workshop Public Hearing Final Study

Total Cost 

Estimate 1
FY 2022-23 

Budget

FY 2022-23 

Expenses

Previous FY 

Expenses

1
 Column indicates the initial cost estimated for each study and accounts for in process studies rolled over from prior fiscal years.

CEQA: Based on LAFCo practice, the work plan assumes minimal costs for CEQA compliance related to preparing a Notice of Exemption, unless an agency proposes a non-coterminous SOI and pays for any necessary

studies and preparation of a Negative Declaration or Environmental Impact Report.

Mendocino LAFCo

FY 2022-23 Estimated Work Plan Implementation Schedule and Cost Tracking

February 6, 2023

Subject to Change: The estimated schedule and costs for the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Work Plan are subject to change based on agency responsiveness, timely provision of requested information, complexity of issues, level

of public and affected agency controversy, and changing needs and priorities.

Pg 12 of 130



Date February 1, 2023 Invoice No. 729

To Mendocino LAFCo Invoice Total 18,480.97$  

Project Executive Officer Services

Work Period January 1 - January 31, 2023

Executive Officer Analyst Clerk Other

Account $110 $75 $40 (At Cost) Totals

5300 114.75 19.50

Public Records Act Requests

5601

85.00$          324.88$        

Adobe Acrobat Pro 239.88$        

5700 197.34$        197.34$        

6200 3.50 385.00$        

7000

8030 City of Ukiah/UVSD OASA 10.75 30.75 3,488.75$    

14,190.00$            3,768.75$     -$                522.22$       18,480.97$  

5300 Basic Services

6200 Bookkeeping 

7000 Work Plan (Sphere of Influence Updates, Municipal Service Reviews, and Special Studies)

8030 City of Ukiah/ UVSD Out of Agency Extension of Wastewater Services

Hinman & Associates Consulting                                                                                                                                                                                                                             
PO Box 1251 | Cedar Ridge, CA 95924                                                                                                                                                                                                             

(916) 813-0818 | uhinman@comcast.net

Totals

Basic Services

Office Supplies

Quickbooks Online Fee 

Internet & Website Costs (Comcast)

Bookkeeping

Work Plan (MSR/SOI/Special Studies)

Staff/Hours

14,085.00$  

Prepared staff report and presentation materials for the January 9th public hearing; coordinated with applicants and LAFCo legal 

counsel. Drafted revised staff report and recommendations and coordinated with applicants and Legal Counsel.

Description

Administrative tasks, file research and maintenance of official records and files. January claims. Agenda packet development for 

January 9 Commission and Executive Committee meetings. Communications with Commissioners. Respond to numerous public 

inquiries, etc. Finalized the 2022 special district election and initiated a special district election process for the remainder of the 

2021-2024 regular seat term. Welcome and introductory emails and materials to new Commissioners Christen and elected 

Commissioner Horsley. Drafted and distributed an RFP and review process for Legal Services. Policy development addressing AB 

2449. Distributed notice of February 6 meeting cancelation. Coordinated with UVCC regarding the annual contract for the office 

lease. Worked with Pehling to finalize the FY 2021-22 audit; coordinated with Treasurer. Submitted BOS Chambers reservation 

request to County for 2023 Commission meeting dates.

Entered claims into Quickbooks and prepared checks. Reconciled Quickbooks. 

Pg 13 of 130



1

eo@mendolafco.org

From: Intuit QuickBooks Team <No_Reply@notifications.intuit.com>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 3:57 AM

To: eo@mendolafco.org

Subject: We received your QuickBooks subscription payment!

Flag Status: Flagged

To help 
protect your 
privacy, 
Micro so ft 
Office 
prevented 
auto matic  
download of 
this pictu re  
from the  
In ternet.
QuickBooks 
logo

   

 

Payment success  
 

Executive Officer, thank you 

for your payment.  
Invoice number: 

10001204104187 

Invoice date: 01/19/2023 

Total: $85.00  

Payment method: VISA ending 

in   

   

 

 

Sign in to QuickBooks where you can see your billing history and view, save, and 

print your invoice.  

View billing history
   

 

Account details 
Billed to:  Mendocino LAFCo  

Company ID ending:   

Items on this invoice:  QuickBooks Online Plus 
 

(1) For subscriptions, your payment method on file will be automatically charged monthly/annually at the 

then-current list price until you cancel. If you have a discount it will apply to the then-current list price 

until it expires. Additional service fees may apply based on whether you add or remove services and 

your usage. See your Billing & Subscription page for additional pricing details. To cancel your 

subscription at any time, go to Account & Settings and cancel the subscription. (2) For one-time 

services, your payment method on file will reflect the charge in the amount referenced in this invoice. 

Terms, conditions, pricing, features, service, and support options are subject to change without notice. 
 

  

 

Pg 14 of 130



Pg 15 of 130



1

eo@mendolafco.org

From: Comcast Business <online.communications@alerts.comcast.net>

Sent: Monday, January 30, 2023 2:08 PM

To: eo@mendolafco.org

Subject: Thank you for your recent payment

  

 

Important Information About Your Comcast Business Account   
 

 

  

 

 

 debf5de8-db93-420e-a453-a05776409758

  

Thank you for your recent payment.  
  

 

  

  

This email confirms that you have authorized Comcast Business to charge 
$197.34 to the Visa specified below. It may take up to three days to 
process your payment.  
 
We recommend saving this email for your records. You can also sign in to 
My Account to view your invoices, review your payment history, and 
manage services. 
 
Account Number Ending in:  **********  
Payment Date:  1/30/2023 
Payment Amount:  $197.34 
Name:  Uma Hinman 
Payment Method:  Visa 
Payment Method Account Ending in:  ***********  
Confirmation Number:  6779838954 
 
Need help? Visit business.comcast.com/help or call 1-800-391-3000. 
Customer support is available 24/7.  
 
Thank you for being a valued Comcast Business customer.  

  
  

 

Sincerely, 
 
Comcast Business  

   

  

Pg 16 of 130



Bill To

Uma Hinman
Mendocino LAFCo
PO Box 1251
CA  95924

INVOICE
Item Details

Service Term: 12-JAN-2023 to 11-JAN-2024

Invoice Information

2354875325Invoice Number
12-JAN-2023Invoice Date
Credit CardPayment Terms

7032500207Order Number
1219979539Customer Number

ADD059607682Purchase Order

USDCurrency

Adobe Inc.
345 Park Avenue
San Jose CA 95110-2704
United States
Federal Tax ID: 77-0019522

Thank you for your business! Page 1 of 1

Billing Contact
https://helpx.adobe.com/contact.html

ORIGINAL

PRODUCT NUMBER PRODUCT DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE NET AMOUNT TAX RATE TAXES TOTAL

30000065 Acrobat Pro 1 EA 239.88 239.88 0.00% 0.00 239.88

Invoice Total
NET AMOUNT (USD)         239.88

TAXES (SEE DETAILS FOR RATES)           0.00

GRAND TOTAL (USD) 239.88

Comments:

Pg 17 of 130



1

eo@mendolafco.org

From: clerk@mendolafco.org

Sent: Monday, December 12, 2022 9:33 AM

To: eo@mendolafco.org

Subject: FW: Your subscription is about to renew

Flag Status: Flagged

 

From: Adobe <message@adobe.com>  

Sent: Monday, December 12, 2022 2:23 AM 

To: clerk@mendolafco.org 

Subject: Your subscription is about to renew 

 
Your Acrobat Pro subscription price is  changing.                                                          

 

Your Acrobat Pro subscription price is 
changing. 

Dear Kristen Meadows, 

 

Thank you for being a valued Acrobat Pro subscriber. We 

want to share an important update about your Adobe Acrobat 

Pro subscription price. 

 

We are updating our price of Acrobat Pro from USD179.88 

annually to USD239.88 (plus tax, as applicable*) annually 

which will be reflected at your next renewal date. 

Pg 18 of 130



2

 

Your subscription will renew automatically on 12-January-

2023 (PT) and you will be charged the new subscription price 

annually. Your subscription will automatically renew annually 

until you cancel (price subject to change). You may cancel at 

any time via your Adobe Account or Customer Support. 

 

Your Adobe Team 
 

 

Sign in 

Learn 

Support 

*Please note that the Tax/VAT stated is an estimate. Your renewal invoice will reflect the final 

amount billed based on the subtotal of products and services, applicable taxes in your state, 

country, jurisdiction or territory, as well as your tax exempt status, if applicable. 

 

Adobe, the Adobe logo, Creative Cloud, the Creative Cloud logo, and Document Cloud are either 

registered trademarks or trademarks of Adobe in the United States and/or other countries. 

 

This is not a comprehensive list of Adobe trademarks. For a full list, refer to the Adobe Trademark 

Guidelines. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners. 

 

Adobe, 345 Park Avenue, San Jose, CA 95110 USA.  

  

 

Pg 19 of 130



We appreciate your business. Page 1 of 2

Law Office of P. Scott Browne
P.O. Box 764
Rough and Ready, CA 95975
5302724250
Tax ID: 68-0348904

January 15, 2023

Mendocino LAFCo
200 South School St. Ste F
Ukiah, CA 95482

Invoice Number: 1216
Invoice Period: 12-16-2022 - 01-15-2023

Payment due by the 15th of next month.

RE: Mendocino LAFCo - General
Mendocino LAFCo - General

Mendocino LAFCo - General

Time Details
Date Staff Member Description Hours
12-16-2022 PSB Monthly flat  rate,  as agreed upon in Legal  Representation

Agreement
 

 
01-04-2023 MB Meeting  with  executive  officer  and  Analyst  regarding

agendas.
0.50

 
01-09-2023 MB Prep  for  and  attend  LAFCo  regular  meeting;  attend  Ex

Comm meeting.
1.40

 
01-11-2023 MB Research  regarding  AB  2449;  research  regarding  policy

changes.
0.40

 
01-13-2023 PSB Participate  in  Legislative  Committee  meeting,  time  split

among all LAFCo clients.
0.50

 
Total 900.00

Total for this Invoice 900.00
Total Amount to Pay 1,800.00

Pg 20 of 130



We appreciate your business. Page 2 of 2

Project Statement of Account
As of 01-15-2023

Project Balance Due
Mendocino LAFCo - General 1,800.00

Total Amount to Pay 1,800.00

Mendocino LAFCo - General
Transactions
Date Transaction Applied Invoice Amount
12-15-2022 Previous Balance   1,800.00
01-15-2023 Payment Received - Reference Check # 1828   (900.00)
01-15-2023 Payment Applied 900.00 1205
01-15-2023 Invoice 1216   900.00

Balance 1,800.00

Pg 21 of 130



We appreciate your business. Page 1 of 2

Law Office of P. Scott Browne
P.O. Box 764
Rough and Ready, CA 95975
5302724250
Tax ID: 68-0348904

February 02, 2023
Mendocino LAFCo
0-2022-03 OSA Project
200 South School St., Suite F
Ukiah, CA 95482

Payment due by the 15th of the next month.

Time Details
Date Staff Member Description Hours Rate Amount
01-03-2023 MB Telephone  conference  with  Analyst

regarding out of boundary service extension
application.

0.40 225.00 90.00

 
01-05-2023 MB Meetings  and  analysis  on  LAFCo  file  no.

O-2022-03.
3.60 225.00 810.00

 
01-06-2023 MB Review messages from City and UVSD; call

with  executive  officer  and  Analyst  (x2);
research LAFCo file no. O-2022-03.

1.80 225.00 405.00

 
Total 1,305.00

Time Summary
Staff Member Hours Rate Amount
Marsha Burch 5.80 225.00 1,305.00

Total 1,305.00

Total for this Invoice 1,305.00
Current Account Balance 1,305.00

Trust Balance 0.00
Total Amount to Pay 1,305.00

Pg 22 of 130



We appreciate your business. Page 2 of 2

Project Statement of Account
As of 02-02-2023

Project Invoices /
Credits

Trust Balance Due

OASA 1,305.00  1,305.00
Total Amount to Pay 1,305.00

OASA
Open Invoices and Credits
Date Transaction Amount Applied Balance
02-02-2023 Invoice 1217 1,305.00 1,305.00

Balance 1,305.00

Pg 23 of 130



Agenda Item No. 4c 

MENDOCINO 
Local Agency Formation Commission 

Staff Report 
 

DATE:  March 6, 2023 

TO:  Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission 

FROM:  Uma Hinman, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Claims and Financial Report for February 2023 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Approve the February 2023 claims and financial report. 
 

Name Account Description Amount Total

5300 Basics Services 11,523.75$   

5601 Office Supplies (QB, Dropbox, 

MS365) 274.87$         

6200 Bookkeeping 385.00$         

6300 Legal Counsel (Monthly flat fee) 900.00$         

8030 Ukiah/UVSD OASA 425.00$         

Comcast 5700 Internet 99.66$            $            99.66 

Streamline 5700 Website Hosting 50.00$            $            50.00 

6000 Televising Meetings (December) 191.70$         

6670 GIS (December) 633.54$         

5500 Office Space 555.00$         

5600 Postage and copies

Total:  $     15,038.52 

Hinman & Associates 

Consulting, Inc.
 $     12,183.62 

Ukiah Valley Conf. Center  $          555.00 

Mendocino County  $          825.24 

P. Scott Browne  $       1,325.00 

 
 
Deposits:  Comcast refund $93.67 

 
Attachments:  

 Budget Tracking Spreadsheet 

 Work Plan Tracking 
 Invoices: Hinman & Associates Consulting, P. Scott Browne 

 
Please note that copies of all invoices, bank statements, reconciliation reports, and petty cash register were 
forwarded to the Treasurer. 

Pg 24 of 130



Mendocino LAFCo Budget Tracking

REVENUE BUDGET 1st Qtr Subtotal
2nd Qtr 

Subtotal
January February March

3rd Qtr 

Subtotal

4th Qtr 

Subtotal
YTD Subtotal Balance 

4020 OPERATING INCOME (APPORTIONMENTS) 265,000.00$       60,000.00$        60,000.00$     -$                  -$                  120,000.00$   145,000.00$   

4800 MISCELLANEOUS (SERVICE FEES OH, COPIES) 850.00$              684.87$           2,075.00$        -$                  -$                  2,075.00$        -$                  3,609.87$        (3,609.87)$      

4910 INTEREST 100.00$               26.65$                 26.38$              2.95$                2.95$                -$                  55.98$              44.02$              

Income/Fees Subtotals 265,100.00$       60,876.65$        60,711.25$     2,077.95$        -$                  -$                  

8000 APPLICATIONS
PRIOR FY 

DEPOSITS
 YTD Subtotal 

 Total Deposit 

TD 

8010
City of Ukiah Detachment of UVSD lands (D-2014-

8010) 19,032.75$         -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  19,032.75$     

8022
City of Ukiah North Annexation Pre-Application (P-

2020-01) 1,500.00$           -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  1,500.00$        

8024
Millview CWD Annexation Pre-Application (P-2020-

04) 3,500.00$           -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  3,500.00$        

8025
City of Ukiah Annexation of City-Owned Properties (A-

2021-01) 5,000.00$           -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  5,000.00$        

8028 Elk CSD Activation of Latent Powers (L-2022-01)
3,000.00$           2,000.00$           -$                  -$                  -$                  2,000.00$        5,000.00$        

8029
City of Ukiah Annexation of Western Hills Properties 

(A-2022-02) 5,000.00$           -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  5,000.00$        

8030
City of Ukiah/UVSD Application for Out Of Agency 

Services  (O-2022-03) -$                      -$                     2,500.00$        -$                  -$                  2,500.00$        2,500.00$        

8601 Sustainable Ag Lands Committee Grant 3,225.00$           2,525.00$           -$                  -$                  -$                  2,525.00$        5,750.00$        

Application Subtotals 4,525.00$           2,500.00$        -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  7,025.00$        47,282.75$     

REVENUE TOTAL 65,401.65$        63,211.25$     2,077.95$        -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  7,025.00$        

EXPENSES BUDGET 1st Qtr Subtotal
2nd Qtr 

Subtotal
January February March

3rd Qtr 

Subtotal

4th Qtr 

Subtotal

Total 

Expenses YTD

Budget 

Balance

5300 Basic Services - EO/Analyst/Clerk 125,100.00$       21,800.00$        21,565.00$     14,085.00$     11,523.75$     25,608.75$     -$                  68,973.75$     56,126.25$     

Unfunded Mandates (Public Records Requests) -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

5500 Rent 6,500.00$           1,590.00$           1,590.00$        555.00$           555.00$           1,110.00$        -$                  4,290.00$        2,210.00$        

5600 Office Expenses 3,300.00$           1,046.85$           542.18$           347.38$           274.87$           622.25$           -$                  2,211.28$        1,088.72$        

5700 Internet & Website Costs 2,500.00$           431.01$              431.01$           153.67$           149.66$           303.33$           -$                  1,165.35$        1,334.65$        

5900 Publication & Legal Notices 2,000.00$           -$                     507.54$           -$                  -$                  507.54$           1,492.46$        

6000 Televising Meetings 2,000.00$           230.10$              501.05$           191.70$           191.70$           -$                  922.85$           1,077.15$        

6100 Audit Services 3,800.00$           1,875.00$           -$                  1,875.00$        1,875.00$        -$                  3,750.00$        50.00$              

6200 Bookkeeping 4,500.00$           1,485.00$           440.00$           385.00$           385.00$           770.00$           -$                  2,695.00$        1,805.00$        

6300 Legal Counsel (S Browne) 19,000.00$         2,700.00$           2,700.00$        900.00$           900.00$           1,800.00$        -$                  7,200.00$        11,800.00$     

6400 A-87 Costs County Services 2,100.00$           -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  2,100.00$        

6500 Insurance - General Liability 3,200.00$           2,799.92$           -$                  -$                  -$                  2,799.92$        400.08$           

6600 Memberships (CALAFCO/CSDA) 3,700.00$           2,329.00$           1,250.00$        -$                  -$                  3,579.00$        121.00$           

6670 GIS Contract with County 2,000.00$           548.96$              1,240.68$        633.54$           633.54$           -$                  2,423.18$        (423.18)$          

6740 In-County Travel & Stipends 4,000.00$           -$                     -$                  199.13$           199.13$           -$                  199.13$           3,800.87$        

6750 Travel & Lodging Expenses 6,000.00$           -$                     1,268.52$        -$                  -$                  1,268.52$        4,731.48$        

6800 Conferences (Registrations) 4,100.00$           625.00$              -$                  -$                  -$                  625.00$           3,475.00$        

7000 Work Plan (MSRs and SOIs) 70,000.00$         14,627.50$        8,516.25$        -$                  -$                  23,143.75$     46,856.25$     

Subtotals 263,800.00$       52,088.34$        40,552.23$     18,500.18$     14,613.52$     -$                  33,113.70$     -$                  125,754.27$   

8000 APPLICATIONS
 TOTAL 

DEPOSITS TD 

 Total 

Expenses TD 

 Deposit 

Balance 

8010
City of Ukiah Detachment of UVSD lands (D-2014-

8010) 19,032.75$         -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  14,518.25$     4,514.50$        

8022
City of Ukiah North Annexation Pre-Application (P-

2020-01) 1,500.00$           -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  1,122.00$        378.00$           

8024
Millview CWD Annexation Pre-Application (P-2020-

04) 3,500.00$           -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  3,609.50$        (109.50)$          

8025
City of Ukiah Annexation of City-Owned Properties (A-

2021-01) 5,000.00$           120.00$              31.25$              -$                  -$                  3,753.75$        1,246.25$        

8028 Elk CSD Activation of Latent Powers (L-2022-01)
5,000.00$           2,047.50$           516.25$           -$                  -$                  4,236.25$        763.75$           

8029
City of Ukiah Annexation of Western Hills Properties 

(A-2022-02) 5,000.00$           80.00$                 -$                  -$                  -$                  250.00$           4,750.00$        

8030
City of Ukiah/UVSD Out of Agency Service Agreement 

(O-2022-03) 2,500.00$           -$                     937.50$           6,968.34$        425.00$           7,393.34$        -$                  8,330.84$        (5,830.84)$      

8601 Sustainable Ag Lands Committee Grant
5,750.00$           2,525.00$           -$                  -$                  -$                  5,750.00$        -$                  

Contract Staff Billing Subtotal 3,922.50$           922.50$           4,793.75$        425.00$           5,218.75$        -$                  10,063.75$     5,712.16$        

Service Fees Overhead (OH) Subtotal 850.00$              562.50$           2,075.00$        -$                  -$                  2,075.00$        -$                  3,487.50$        

Application Expenses Total 4,772.50$           1,485.00$        6,968.34$        425.00$           -$                  7,393.34$        -$                  13,650.84$     

EXPENSES TOTAL 56,860.84$        42,037.23$     25,468.52$     15,038.52$     -$                  40,507.04$     -$                  139,405.11$   

MONTHLY CLAIMS TOTAL (not including OH fees) 56,010.84$        23,393.52$     15,038.52$     -$                  

Pg 25 of 130



BUDGET BALANCE

REVENUE TOTALS 265,100.00$              138,030.98$ 

Operating Income (Apportions) 265,000.00$                  145,000.00$    

Interest 100.00$                          55.98$              

Miscellaneous -$                                

Applications & SALC -$                                (7,025.00)$       

EXPENSES TOTALS 263,800.00$              124,394.89$ 

Basic Services (Staffing) 125,100.00$                  56,126.25$      

Services and Supplies 68,700.00$                    35,063.23$      

Work Plan (MSRs and SOIs) 70,000.00$                    46,856.25$      

Applications & SALC 5,712.16$        

ACCOUNT BALANCES

CASH AVAILABLE 185,009$       

County of Mendocino (Projected; statement unavailable) 145,000$        

Operations (Checking per Quickbooks) 40,009$           

RESERVES 116,002$       

Legal Reserve 50,000$           

Operations Reserve 66,002$           

CONTINGENCIES 30,815$         

Work Plan 30,815$           

Accounts Total 331,826$       

FY 2022-23  YEAR TO DATE  FINANCIAL SUMMARY

127,080.98$               

120,000.00$                   

55.98$                             

7,025.00$                       

(139,405.11)$              

ACTUAL TO DATE

(68,973.75)$                    

(33,636.77)$                    

(23,143.75)$                    

(13,650.84)$                    

Pg 26 of 130



Coordination/

Request for 

Information

County Service Area 3 Complete Complete 4/4/2022
6/6/2022  

7/11/2022
7/15/2022 $10,000 $16,199 $0 $1,031 $17,230 

Ukiah Valley Sanitation District Ongoing Complete
9/12/2022   

11/7/2022
12/19/2022 12/22/2022 $40,000 $22,703 $10,000 $6,848 $29,551 

City of Ukiah Ongoing Complete
9/12/2022   

11/7/2022
12/19/2022 12/22/2022 $25,000 $8,380 $15,000 $15,265 $23,645 

Inland Water Districts (8) Pending $25,000 $0 $25,000 $0 

Coastal Water Districts (6) Pending $20,000 $0 $20,000 $0 

Estimated Total $70,000 $23,144

2
 Column indicates a running total for actual expenses incurred to date for each study in process and is not limited to a specific fiscal year.

Total Cost to 

Date 
2

Rolling Work Plan: It is difficult to completely contain staff activities in a single fiscal year; therefore, completion of a study may roll over to the next fiscal year. This estimated work plan implementation schedule

and cost tracking table is intended to enhance communication and transparency.

Agency Admin Draft

Public 

Workshop Public Hearing Final Study

Total Cost 

Estimate 
1

FY 2022-23 

Budget

FY 2022-23 

Expenses

Previous FY 

Expenses

1
 Column indicates the initial cost estimated for each study and accounts for in process studies rolled over from prior fiscal years.

CEQA: Based on LAFCo practice, the work plan assumes minimal costs for CEQA compliance related to preparing a Notice of Exemption, unless an agency proposes a non-coterminous SOI and pays for any

necessary studies and preparation of a Negative Declaration or Environmental Impact Report.

Mendocino LAFCo

FY 2022-23 Estimated Work Plan Implementation Schedule and Cost Tracking

March 6, 2023

Subject to Change: The estimated schedule and costs for the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Work Plan are subject to change based on agency responsiveness, timely provision of requested information, complexity of issues,

level of public and affected agency controversy, and changing needs and priorities.

Pg 27 of 130



Date March 1, 2023 Invoice No. 731

To Mendocino LAFCo Invoice Total 12,183.62$  

Project Executive Officer Services

Work Period February 1 - February 28, 2023

Executive Officer Analyst Clerk Other

Account $110 $75 $40 (At Cost) Totals

5300 81.75 33.75

Public Records Act Requests

5601

85.00$          274.87$        

Dropbox Annual Fee 119.88$        

Microsoft 365 Annual Fee 69.99$          

6200 3.50 385.00$        

9,377.50$              2,531.25$     -$                274.87$       12,183.62$  

5300 Basic Services

6200 Bookkeeping 

Description

Administrative tasks, file research and maintenance of official records and files. February claims. Agenda packet development for 

February 16 Policies & Procedures Committee meetings. Agenda packet development for March 6, 2023 regular Commission 

meeting. Inquiries regarding the new special district election process for the remainder of the 2021-2024 regular seat term. 

Welcome and introductory emails and materials to new Commissioner Crane. Manage the RFP and review process for Legal 

Services. Policy development addressing AB 2449. Responded to inquiries on special district formation and 

annexation/detachments. Met with Hopland Cemetery District board member to hear progress made by district and discuss ways 

to gain efficiencies of management and operations.

Entered claims into Quickbooks and prepared checks. Reconciled Quickbooks. 

Hinman & Associates Consulting                                                                                                                                                                                                                             
PO Box 1251 | Cedar Ridge, CA 95924                                                                                                                                                                                                             

(916) 813-0818 | uhinman@comcast.net

Totals

Basic Services

Office Supplies

Quickbooks Online Fee 

Bookkeeping

Staff/Hours

11,523.75$  

Pg 28 of 130



1

eo@mendolafco.org

From: Intuit QuickBooks Team <No_Reply@notifications.intuit.com>

Sent: Sunday, February 19, 2023 7:31 AM

To: eo@mendolafco.org

Subject: We received your QuickBooks subscription payment!

To help 
protect your 
privacy, 
Micro so ft 
Office 
prevented 
auto matic  
download of 
this pictu re  
from the  
In ternet.
QuickBooks 
logo

   

 

Payment success  
 

Executive Officer, thank you 

for your payment.  
Invoice number: 

10001210234349 

Invoice date: 02/19/2023 

Total: $85.00  

Payment method: VISA ending 

in   

   

 

 

Sign in to QuickBooks where you can see your billing history and view, save, and 

print your invoice.  

View billing history
   

 

Account details 
Billed to:  Mendocino LAFCo  

Company ID ending:  

Items on this invoice:  QuickBooks Online Plus 
 

(1) For subscriptions, your payment method on file will be automatically charged monthly/annually at the 

then-current list price until you cancel. If you have a discount it will apply to the then-current list price 

until it expires. Additional service fees may apply based on whether you add or remove services and 

your usage. See your Billing & Subscription page for additional pricing details. To cancel your 

subscription at any time, go to Account & Settings and cancel the subscription. (2) For one-time 

services, your payment method on file will reflect the charge in the amount referenced in this invoice. 

Terms, conditions, pricing, features, service, and support options are subject to change without notice. 
 

  

 

Pg 29 of 130



Receipt for clerk@mendolafco.org

Dropbox Inc.

1800 Owens St

San Francisco, CA 94158

United States

billing-support@dropbox.com

Payment Date Amount Receipt ID

Visa ending in  approved 2/7/2023 $119.88 D5BQP8N3QP52

Description Amount

Dropbox Plus - 2TB (2/7/2023 to 2/7/2024) $119.88

Total $119.88

All amounts shown are in USD. This is not an invoice. No additional payment is required.

Cookies & CCPA preferences Pg 30 of 130



January 12, 2023 | Order number e44893b2-72a5-4ce8-bfaa-074aea67670f

Microsoft 365 Personal
$69.99 | Subscription

Completed

Shipping details

Uma Hinman
200 S. School St.
Ukiah, CA, 95482-4828
US

Billing details

Subtotal $69.99
Tax $0.00

Total $69.99
Paid with Visa **

Related links: Print order Order help

Manage subscription

Total $69.99
Paid with Visa **

Hide details



 FeedbackPg 31 of 130

https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/store/p/microsoft-365-personal/cfq7ttc0k5bf/007r
https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/store/p/microsoft-365-personal/cfq7ttc0k5bf/007r


We appreciate your business. Page 1 of 3

Law Office of P. Scott Browne
P.O. Box 764
Rough and Ready, CA 95975
5302724250
Tax ID: 68-0348904

February 15, 2023

Mendocino LAFCo
200 South School St. Ste F
Ukiah, CA 95482

Invoice Number: 1228
Invoice Period: 01-16-2023 - 02-15-2023

Payment due by the 15th of next month.

RE: Mendocino LAFCo - General
Mendocino LAFCo - General

Mendocino LAFCo - General

Time Details
Date Staff Member Description Hours
01-16-2023 PSB Monthly flat  rate,  as agreed upon in Legal  Representation

Agreement
 

 
01-17-2023 PSB Participate  in  CALAFCO  staff  workshop  planning  session

(Time split between all LAFCo clients).
0.30

 
01-18-2023 PSB CALAFCo  Review  and  revise  indemnification  legislation

language (Time split between all LAFCo clients).
0.20

 
01-19-2023 PSB CALAFCo  Board  meeting;  Review  and  respond  to  emails

( Time split between all LAFCo clients).
0.25

 
01-24-2023 PSB CALAFCo Workshop planning meeting (Time split between

all LAFCo clients)
0.25

 
01-25-2023 MB Meeting with EO and Analyst 1.20
 
01-30-2023 MB Review message re: CSA 3 - Sherwood Road; Message to

EO and Analyst
0.20

 
02-01-2023 WJC Complete and Submit Form 700 for filing 0.50
 
02-13-2023 MB Review draft policy re: AB 2449; Review agenda for policy

committee;  Respond  to  question  re:  possible  agreement
between LAFCo and City

0.50

 
Total 900.00

Total for this Invoice 900.00

Pg 32 of 130



We appreciate your business. Page 2 of 3

Total Amount to Pay 900.00

Pg 33 of 130



We appreciate your business. Page 3 of 3

Project Statement of Account
As of 02-15-2023

Project Balance Due
Mendocino LAFCo - General 900.00

Total Amount to Pay 900.00

Mendocino LAFCo - General
Transactions
Date Transaction Applied Invoice Amount
01-15-2023 Previous Balance   1,800.00
02-15-2023 Payment Received - Reference Check # 1816   (900.00)
02-15-2023 Payment Applied 900.00 1187
02-15-2023 Payment Received - Reference Check # 1834   (900.00)
02-15-2023 Payment Applied 900.00 1218
02-15-2023 Invoice 1228   900.00

Balance 900.00

Pg 34 of 130



We appreciate your business. Page 1 of 2

Law Office of P. Scott Browne
P.O. Box 764
Rough and Ready, CA 95975
5302724250
Tax ID: 68-0348904

February 15, 2023
Mendocino LAFCo
0-2022-03 OSA Project
200 South School St., Suite F
Ukiah, CA 95482

Payment due by the 15th of the next month.

Time Details
Date Staff Member Description Hours Rate Amount
01-31-2023 MB Meeting with EO and Analyst re: OASA staff

report and resolution; Research
0.80 250.00 200.00

 
02-02-2023 MB Meeting with EP and Analyst re: OASA3 0.50 250.00 125.00
 
02-08-2023 MB Telephone  conerence  with  EO  re:  OASA

issues with City
0.40 250.00 100.00

 
Total 425.00

Time Summary
Staff Member Hours Rate Amount
Marsha Burch 1.70 250.00 425.00

Total 425.00

Total for this Invoice 425.00
Previous Invoice Balance 1,305.00
Current Account Balance 1,730.00

Trust Balance 0.00
Total Amount to Pay 1,730.00

Pg 35 of 130



We appreciate your business. Page 2 of 2

Project Statement of Account
As of 02-15-2023

Project Invoices /
Credits

Trust Balance Due

OASA 1,730.00  1,730.00
Total Amount to Pay 1,730.00

OASA
Open Invoices and Credits
Date Transaction Amount Applied Balance
02-02-2023 Invoice 1217 1,305.00 1,305.00
02-15-2023 Invoice 1229 425.00 425.00

Balance 1,730.00

Pg 36 of 130



LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MENDOCINO COUNTY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022 and 2021

Pg 37 of 130

Uma Hinman
Typewritten text
Agenda Item No. 4d



LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MENDOCINO COUNTY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 & 2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Management Discussion and Analysis 1

Independent Auditor’s Report 5

Financial Statements

Statement of Net Position and Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 7

Statement of Activities 8

Notes to the Financial Statements 9

Supplementary Information

Budgetary Comparison Schedule-General Fund             15

Pg 38 of 130



1

Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission
Management Discussion & Analysis of

Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2022 & 2021

1. Discussion of Basic Financial Statements

Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission’s (LAFCo) primary funding source for its annual budget 
is mandated by Government Code Section 56381. Section 56381 requires that the costs of LAFCo are to 
be paid in equal one-third shares by the agencies represented on the Commission; that is, the County 
pays one-third of the adopted budget, the four Cities pay one-third and the fifty Special Districts pay 
one-third. LAFCo does not receive its annual income directly; instead, an independent third party, the 
County Auditor, receives and holds the funds for LAFCo.

LAFCo’s General Fund is its primary operating fund; it is used to account for most all transactions of the 
Commission. When application fees are received, a Project Fund will be developed for the income and 
expenditures associated with that particular Project.

The Commission also maintains a reserves account for holding funds for legal and operational 
contingencies. Commission policies specify a minimum legal reserve of $35,000 and an operational 
reserve of 25% of the operational budget (Mendocino LAFCo Policy 5.1.5). Although the Commission did 
not revise the legal reserve policy, during Fiscal Year 2020/2021, the Commission directed staff to 
increase legal reserves to $50,000. That direction remained unchanged in FY 2021/2022.

LAFCo has no other specialized funds such as enterprise funds, capital asset funds, debt payment funds, 
or other similar funds. Because of the size of its budget, the type of income, and the nature of the 
funding process mandated by Government Code Section 56381 and the keeping of the funds by the 
County Auditor, LAFCo has historically utilized a modified cash basis of accounting. 

2. Comparative Financial Information

All services needed by LAFCo, including County services received by LAFCo, must be paid for from 
LAFCo’s budget. This includes such services as staff, legal counsel, GIS, County surveyor, Auditor, (A-87 
costs), Assessor and Recorder, engineering services, publications of legal notices, communications, 
website, insurance, the cost of annual audits, etc. These costs have been reflected in LAFCo’s budget 
since Fiscal Year 2001-2002. Additionally, the costs of the Sphere of Influence/Municipal Service Review 
process as mandated by G.C. 56425 and 56430 have been reflected in LAFCo’s budget. 

For several years the Commission relied on excess reserves resulting from underutilized work plan 
budget to balance the budget, thereby adopting lower apportionment fees. The excess reserves were 
exhausted in Fiscal Year 2018/2019 and the Commission began to increase apportionment fees annually 
to work towards adoption of a balanced annual budget. Apportionment fees in Fiscal Years 2018/2019 
and 2019/2020 were adopted at $135,000 and increased to $150,000 with the Fiscal Year 2020/2021 
budget. In FY 2021/2022, apportionment fees were increased to $265,000 for a balanced annual budget 
and to meet Commission direction to increase the legal reserves to $50,000.

Pg 39 of 130



2

3. Condensed Financial Information

A summation of LAFCo’s financial circumstances is provided in the below tables:

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2022 & 2021

Assets 2022 2021

Cash 174,896      93,985

Accounts Receivable 110 2,986

Total Assets 175,005 96,971

Liabilities 30,749 20,990

Total Net Position 144,257 75,980

Statement of Activities

     June 30, 2022 & 2021

2022 2021

Program Expenses 229,875 192,650

Program Revenues 297,626 173,718

Net Program Income 67,650 (18,794)

General Revenue 627 337

Increase in Net Position 68,277 (18,457)

Net Position-July 1 75,980 94,437

Net Position-June 30 144,257 75,980

4. LAFCo’s Overall Financial Position

The particular financial circumstances of LAFCo are different from most public agencies. LAFCo has no 
authority to tax, borrow or enter into capital projects. It does have the power to assess fees for 
applications and services provided. By law, fees can only be the actual, direct costs of providing the 
service, and cannot be used to fund the operating costs of LAFCo. The primary expenditures for the 
budget are paid by the participating agencies rather than from fees, taxes or assessments on property. 
LAFCo has no debt. Its primary monetary assets are its reserve funds. At end of Fiscal Year 2021/2022, 
general reserve funds were at $115,968.

Pg 40 of 130



3

5. Analysis and Transactions of General Fund-LAFCo’s Budget

Following is the adopted budget for Fiscal Year 2021/2022, which was adopted by the Commission in 
June 2021 (LAFCo Resolution No. 2020-21-08). 

Commission's Final Budget Fiscal Year 2021/2022

Quick 
Books Fiscal Year

Line # Account # Description 2021/2022

Revenue

1 4000 LAFCo Apportionment Fees $      265,000 

2 4030 Application Filing Fees -

3 4800 Miscellaneous                        -

4 4910 Interest Income                   100

5 Total $       265,100

6 Use of Residual Cash             -

7 Total Income $       265,100

Expenses

8 5300 Contract Services - Office & Staff 108,000

9 5500 Office Rent 5,775

10 5600 Office Expense 3,300

11 5700 Internet & Website Costs 2,500

12 5900 Publication & Legal Notices 2,000

13 6000 Televising Commission Meetings 2,000

14 6100 Audit Services 3,500

15 6200 Bookkeeping 4,500 

16 6300 Legal Counsel 19,000

17 6400 A-87 Costs - County Services 2,100

18 6500 Insurance - General Liability 2,450

19 6600 Memberships (CALAFCO/CSDA) 3,525

20 6670 GIS Contract with County (Counsel training/IS Support) 2,500

20 6740 In-County Travel & Stipends 4,000

21 6750 Travel & Lodging 6,250

22 6800 Conferences (Registrations) 4,100

23 7000 Work Plan (MSRs and SOIs) 51,500

24 9000 Special District Training Support                 

25 Total Expenses before Application Fees $       227,000

26 8000 Application Filing Fees               -

27 8601 Special Project (SALC Grant Project) -

28 Total Expense $       227,000

28 Fund Balance $          38,100

29 General Reserves (Legal & Operational) $       106,750

Pg 41 of 130



4

6. Analysis of Significant Budgetary Variations-Unspent Funds
Each year, since the beginning of the budget process under Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg (CKH), there have 
been unspent funds from the various line items. The Commission through its budget deliberations 
process has determined that money not spent in one budget year from various line items, is to be used 
in the next year’s budget to increase reserves and as a Fund Balance Carryover to offset the forthcoming 
year’s budget for G.C. 56425 & 56430 mandates.

Additionally, LAFCo Policies dictate maintenance of a reserve account. LAFCo Policy 5.1.5 Reserves for 
Fiscal Stability, Cash Flow, and Contingencies (Resolution No. 2018-19-06) states: “Mendocino LAFCo will 
strive to maintain reserves for fiscal stability, unforeseen operating or capital needs, cash flow 
requirements, revenue source stability from revenue shortfalls, and unanticipated legal fees. The 
reserves consist of an Operating Reserve of 25 percent of the annual operating budget and a Legal 
Reserve of $35,000 and are to be maintained in separate accounts.”

Although the Commission did not revise the legal reserve policy, during Fiscal Year 2020/2021, the 
Commission directed staff to increase legal reserves to $50,000. Commission direction remained 
unchanged in FY 2021/2022.

7. Description of Significant Capital Assets and Long-term Debt Activity
Except for a provision in CKH that allows the Board of Supervisors to lend temporary operational funds 
to the Commission, LAFCo has no authority to borrow or to develop capital projects. The Commission 
has no mortgages, leases, liens, short-term loans, long-term debt, or any other encumbrances. It owns 
no stocks, bonds, securities or other investments. It has no capital assets or capitalization programs. The 
Commission does have the authority to pursue grants to assist in its decision making, but has no grants 
at this time. 

8. Discussion of Significant Changes in Conditions and Estimated 
Maintenance Expenses for Infrastructure Assets

The Commission owns no land, buildings or infrastructure. Other than normal office furniture, filing 
cabinets, telephone, computer, and printer, the Commission has no physical assets. Paper and electronic 
records or past actions and activities are maintained in the LAFCo office, and from the date of inception 
of LAFCo in 1963.

9. Currently Known Facts, Decisions or Conditions
There are no facts, decisions or conditions that are currently known that are expected to significantly 
alter LAFCo’s future financial picture.

10. Additional Financial Information
This financial report is designed to provide LAFCo’s participating agencies, members of the public, 
customers, and other interested parties with an overview of LAFCo’s financial results and financial 
condition. Should the reader have questions regarding the information included in this report or wish to 
request additional financial information, please contact Mendocino LAFCo at 200 South School Street, 
Ukiah, CA 95482; 707-463-4470.

Pg 42 of 130



5

December 1, 2022

Mendocino LAFCO

Ukiah, CA
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mendocino LAFCO as of and for the year-
ended June 30, 2022, as listed in the Table of Contents.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the financial statements.   

We believe that our audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.  

Pg 43 of 130



6

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Mendocino LAFCO as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial 
position, and cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis information and Budget VS. Actual comparison be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with managements responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements.   We do not express an opinion or provide any assurances on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide an assurance.

Zach Pehling, CPA’s

Pg 44 of 130



LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MENDOCINO COUNTY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

& GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 & 2021

Statement Statement

of Net of Net

General Adjustments Position General Adjustments Position

Assets Fund Note 3 2022 Fund Note 3 2021

    Cash - Note 2 174,896$ -$                   174,896$ 93,985$   -$                   93,985$   

    Accounts Receivable 110          -                     110          2,986       -                     2,986$     

          Total Assets 175,006$ -$                   175,006$ 96,971$   -$                   96,971$   

Liabilities

   Accounts Payable 18,302     -                     18,302     16,615     -                     16,615     

   Fees Received in Advance 12,448     -                     12,448     4,376       -                     4,376       

          Total Liabilities 30,749$   -$                   30,749$   20,991$   -$                   20,991$   

Fund Balance/Net Position

  Fund Balances

      Reserved for Legal 50,000     (50,000)         -                50,000     (50,000)         -                

      Reserved for Operating Reserve 56,750     (56,750)         -                40,506     (40,506)         -                

      Unassigned 37,507     (37,507)         -                (14,526)    14,526          -                

          Total Fund Balance 144,257$ (144,257)$    -$              75,980$   (75,980)$       -$              

          Total Liabilities & Fund Balances 175,006$ (175,006)$    -$              96,971$   (96,971)$       -$              

Net Position

          Unrestricted 144,257$      144,257$ 75,980$        75,980$   

         Total Net Position 144,257$      144,257$ 75,980$        75,980$   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

7 Pg 45 of 130



LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MENDOCINO COUNTY

            STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

                                FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 & 2021

2022 2021

General Government - Planning

   Insurance-General 2,601$        2,815$        

   Memberships 3,470          3,727          

   Audit Fees 3,520          3,380          

   Internet and Website Costs 1,976          1,780          

   Legal Counsel 12,768        17,017        

   Architect, Engineering and Planning Services -                   -                   

   Professional Services 152,407      120,255      

   Rent 5,959          5,538          

   Office Expenses 2,790          3,655          

   Publication and Legal Notices 1,296          833             

   County Support Services (GIS) 1,469          603             

   Televising Commissioner Meetings 2,014          1,537          

   Bookkeeping-Financial 4,500          4,500          

   Professional Fees-Applications 32,157        24,508        

   Transportation and Travel Out of County -                   -                   

   In-County Travel & Stipends 426             350             

   Miscellaneous Expense 2,624          2,015          

   Special District Training Support -                   -                   

          Total Program Expenses 229,977     192,512     

Program Revenues

   Assessments 265,000      150,000      

   Application Fees & Reimbursements 32,626        23,718        

          Total Program Revenues 297,626     173,718     

Net Program Income 67,650        (18,794)      

General Revenues

   Interest Earnings 627             337             

          Total General Revenues 627             337             

Increase in Net Position 68,277        (18,457)      

Net Position - July 1, 75,980        94,437        

Net Position - June 30, 144,257$   75,980$      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

8 Pg 46 of 130



9

Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2022 & 2021

Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

The Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission’s (LAFCo) primary operates under the rules and 
requirements of the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Act of 2000 (CKH). This act is commonly 
referred to as CKH or AB 2838. This act is found in the Government Code beginning with Section 56000. 
However, this part of the Government Code does not comprise of all the requirements of laws that 
LAFCo must meet. Other elements of the law such as the Public Resources Code, Guidelines to California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), Revenue and Taxation Code, Election Code, Brown Act, case 
decisions, state and local policies and the policies and procedures of LAFCo also affect the decision 
making responsibilities of LAFCo. However, the primary controlling authority of LAFCo is the 
Government Code beginning with Section 56000 and LAFCo’s policies which implement the law.

Accounting Policies

The Commission’s accounting and reporting policies conform to the generally accepted accounting 
principles as applicable to state and local governments. The following is a summary of the more 
significant policies.

Basis of Presentation

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the reporting of the 
Commission as a whole. 

The Commission is comprised of only one fund, the General Fund. The General Fund is the primary 
operating fund of the Commission and is always classified as a major fund. It is used to account for all 
activities. The Commission maintains two bank accounts to manage the Fund: a checking account with 
Savings Bank of Mendocino County and a reserves account with Westamerica Bank in Ukiah, CA. The 
reserves are set aside for legal and operational contingencies; policies are established for both.

Basis of Accounting 

Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities are presented using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses 
are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset is used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, 
asset and liabilities resulting from an exchange are recognized when the exchange takes place.

Pg 47 of 130



10

When an expense is incurred for the purpose for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are 
available, the Commission’s policy is to apply restricted net assets first. 

In the General Fund Financial Statements, government funds are presented on the modified accrual 
basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when “measurable and available”. 
Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available means 
collectable within the current period or within sixty days after year end. Expenditures are recorded 
when the related fund liability is incurred, except for general obligation bond principal and interest 
which are recorded when due. 

When an expense is incurred for the purpose for which either committed, assigned or unassigned net 
assets are available, the Commission’s policy is to apply committed or assigned net asset first. 

Budget

The Commission is required to adopt an annual budget for the Commission’s general operations each 
fiscal year. The annual budget for the general fund is prepared in accordance with the basis of 
accounting utilized by the Commission. The budget is amended from time-to-time as needed and is 
approved by the Commissioners with each amendment. 

Deposits and Investments

It is the Commission’s policy for deposits and investments to either be insured by the FDIC or 
collateralized. The Commission’s deposits and investments are categorized to give an indication of the 
level of risk assumed by the Commission as of June 30, 2022 and 2021. The categories are described as 
follows:

Category 1 Insured, registered or collateralized, with securities held by the entity or its agent in the 
                             entity’s name.

Category 2 Uninsured and unregistered or collateralized, with securities held by the counter party’s
                             trust department or agent in the entity’s name.

Category 3 Uninsured and unregistered, or uncollateralized, with securities held by the counter 
                             party, or its trust department or agent but not held in the entity’s name. 

Deposits and Investments as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 consist of Category 1 type only.

State law requires uninsured deposits of public agencies to be secured by certain state approved 
investment securities. The Commission’s deposits are secured as part of an undivided collateral pool 
covering all public deposits with the financial institution. The market value of the pool must be equal to 
at least 110% of the total public deposits held by the financial institutions. 

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 

Pg 48 of 130



11

and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Risk Management

The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft to, damage to, and destruction 
of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The Commission carries 
insurance for all risks. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverages 
in the past three years. 

Equity Classifications – Government-wide Statements

Equity is classified as net position and displayed as follows:

a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt – consists of capital assets net of accumulated 
depreciation and reduced by outstanding liabilities used for acquisition, construction or 
improvement of these assets.

b. Unrestricted net position – All other net assets that do not meet the definition of “Investment in 
capital assets, net of unrelated debt”.

Equity Classifications – Fund Statements

Government fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified as non-
spendable, restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned. 

Note 2 – Cash

The Commission maintains an account with Savings Bank of Mendocino County used for issuing checks 
for the payment of general operating expenses. The County of Mendocino collects the Apportionment 
Fees from the County, Cities and Special Districts and holds those funds in an account with the County 
Auditor. When sufficient funds are collected (Apportionment Fees), LAFCo will then transfer funds into 
the checking account at Savings Bank of Mendocino County. Cash on deposit in the County of 
Mendocino’s treasury is a pooled money investment account similar to a money market account. The 
funds deposited with the County, until transferred, are invested in accordance with Sections 53601 and 
53635 of the California Government Code that specify the authorized investments that an investment 
pool can purchase. 

The County’s investment policy as of July 7, 1997 prohibits the following: reverse repurchase 
agreements, collaterized mortgage securities, futures or options, lend securities or security with a stated 
or potential maturity longer than five years. Interest earnings recorded by the Commission for these 
funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 were $537 and $255, respectively. The County of 
Mendocino issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report. Copies of the County of 
Mendocino’s annual financial report may be obtained from the County of Mendocino’s Auditor-
Controller’s office, 501 Low Gap Road, Room 1080, Ukiah, CA 95482.

Pg 49 of 130



12

The Commission’s deposits with County Treasury have a risk category of “uncategorized” which 
represents investments in pools where the Commission’s investments are not evidenced by specific 
identifiable securities. 

The Commission also maintains an account with Westamerica Bank used for holding reserve funds for 
legal and operational contingencies. Commission policies specify a minimum legal reserve of $35,000 
and an operational reserve of 25% of the operational budget. However, beginning in FY 2020/2021, the 
Commission directed an increase in legal reserves to $50,000 in response to increases in complicated 
applications and work plan tasks.  Interest income from Westamerica and Savings Bank of Mendocino 
accounts totaled $90 for the year-ended June 30, 2022

Note 3 – Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position

There are no differences in the amounts reported for government activities in the Statement of Net 
Position. 

Note 4 – Accounts Receivable

On an accrual basis, Revenues are recognized in the fiscal year in which the services are billed. 

Note 5 – Accounts Payable

On an accrual basis, expenses are recognized in the fiscal year in which the goods or services are 
received.

Note 6 – Fees Received in Advance

On an accrual basis, Revenues are recognized in the fiscal year in which the services are provided. Some 
fees are received by the Commission in advance of performing the requested services and are therefore 
carried as a liability until the work has been completed and the revenues earned. 

Note 7 – Joint Powers Agreement 

The Commission participates in a joint venture under a joint agreement (JPA) with the Special District 
Risk Management Authority (SDRMA). The relationship between the Commission and the JPA is such 
that is not a component unit of the Commission and the JPA is not a component unit of the Commission 
for financial reporting purposes. 

The JPA’s purpose is to jointly fund and develop programs to provide comprehensive and economical 
funding of property, workers compensation and employers liability coverage’s for bodily injury by 
accident or by disease, including resulting from death, arising out of and in the course of an employee’s 
employment with the Commission. This program is provided through collective self-insurance; the 
purchase of insurance coverage’s; or a combination thereof. Copies of SDRMA annual financial reports 
may be obtained from their executive office at 1112 I Street #300, Sacramento, CA 95814. 

Pg 50 of 130



13

Note 8 – Risk Management

The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; damage to, and theft or destruction 
of assets, errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During FY 2021/2022 the 
Commission contracted insurance for liability, property, crime damage, and director insurance. 

Note 9 – Contingencies

As of June 30, 2022, the Commission had no pending litigation or potential nondisclosed liabilities that 
management believes would have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Note 10 – Subsequent Events

Subsequent events are those events or transactions that occur subsequent to the effective date of the 
financial statements, but prior to the issuance of the final reports, which may have a material effect on 
the financial statement or disclosures therein.

There are no subsequent events that have occurred that meet the above definition. 

Pg 51 of 130



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Pg 52 of 130



LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MENDOCINO COUNTY

           BUDGETARY COMPARISONS SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

                                FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with 

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance 75,980$      75,980$      75,980$       -$                       

Resources (Inflows)

     Assessments 265,000      265,000      265,000       -                    

     Fees & Reimbursements -              -              32,626         32,626              

     Miscellaneous -              -              -                -                    

     Interest Earnings 100             100             627               527                   

          Total Resources 265,100      265,100      298,254       33,154              

Charges (Outflows)

   Insurance-General 2,450          2,450          2,601           (151)                  

   Memberships 3,525          3,525          3,470           55                      

   Audit Services 3,500          3,500          3,520           (20)                    

   Bookkeeping 4,500          4,500          4,500           -                         

   Internet and Website Costs 2,500          2,500          1,976           524                   

   Legal Counsel 19,000        19,000        12,768         6,232                

   Basic Services (Contract) 108,000      108,000      108,012       (12)                    

   Office Rent 5,775          5,775          5,959           (184)                  

   Office Expenses 3,300          3,300          2,790           510                   

   Publication & Legal Notices 2,000          2,000          1,296           704                   

   Televising Commission Meetings 2,000          2,000          2,014           (14)                    

   A-87 Costs-County Services 2,100          2,100          2,462           (362)                  

   In-County Travel & Stipends 4,000          4,000          426               3,574                

   Travel & Lodging 6,250          6,250          -                    6,250                

   Conferences (Registrations) 4,100          4,100          -                    4,100                

   Work Plan (MSR and SOI) 51,500        51,500        44,395         7,105                

   Contract Services-GIS Services 2,500          2,500          1,469           1,031                

   Misc Expenses (Special District Training 

Support, bank service charges) -              -              162               (162)                  

   Applications -              -              32,157         (32,157)             

          Total Charges 227,000      227,000      229,977       (2,977)               

Ending Budgetary Net Position 114,080$   114,080$   144,257$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

15 Pg 53 of 130



Agenda Item No. 4e 
 

MENDOCINO 
Local Agency Formation Commission 

 
Staff Report 

DATE:  March 23, 2023 

TO:  Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission  

FROM:  Uma Hinman, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Ukiah Valley Conference Center Office Space Annual Lease 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Commission approve and authorize the Chair to sign the 2023 annual lease between the City of 
Ukiah and Mendocino LAFCo for Suite K in the Ukiah Valley Conference Center. 
 

BACKGROUND 

The Commission has leased an office space in the Ukiah Valley Conference Center (UVCC) since at least 
2013. Each year, the City of Ukiah presents a renewal contract including updates rent rates per the original 
contract.  
 
The increase in office rent is consistent with the contract, which allows for an annual increase of 5 percent. 
The 2023 rates for the office space are $525 and the work room fee remains the same at $30/month. 
 
 
Attachment 2023 UVCC Lease 

Pg 54 of 130



 1 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF UKIAH 

And 
MENDOCINO COUNTY LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

 
 
The Lease, made this first day of February 2023, by and between the City of 
Ukiah, hereinafter referred to as “Lessor” and the Mendocino County Local 
Agency Formation Commission, hereinafter referred to as “Lessee.” 
 
WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, Lessor does determine that the use of certain property owned by the 
Lessor is not requires for its use at this time and is available for lease; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree that on the terms and conditions 
hereinafter expressed, Lessor does hereby let to Lessee and Lessee does 
hereby hire from Lessor, approximately 200 square feet of the property and 
building located at 200 South School Street, Suite K in the City of Ukiah, County 
of Mendocino.  
 
1. TERM 
 

The term of this Lease shall be a maximum of 1 year (12 months), 
commencing on the date set forth above, through December 31, 2023. 
Both parties understand that the subject property is part of the Ukiah 
Valley Conference Center. 

 
2. RENT 
 
2.1 Rent for the leased premises Suite K shall be $525.00 per month, payable 

on or before the fifth day of each month.  If rent due under this paragraph 
is not received by Lessor on or before the tenth day of the month, lessee 
shall pay Lessor a late fee of 10% of monthly rent.  The imposition of this 
fee is in addition to any other remedies Lessor may have for Lessee’s 
failure to pay rent when due under the terms of this Lease. 

 
2.2  If the Lease is extended for one or more additional one-year terms under 

Section 1, at the commencement of each subsequent year, the rent shall 
be increased by 5% of the rent charged in the previous year. 

 
2.3  Lessee shall also pay any real property, possessory interest or personal 

property taxes, and assessments imposed on the leased premises, 
property located on or affixed to the lease premises or as a result of the 
lease, use or ownership of the leased premises. 

 

Pg 55 of 130



 2 

3. USE, UTILITIES, REPAIRS, MAINTENANCE AND SHARED 
WORKSPACE 

  
3.1 The Premises shall be used for general office business to be conducted 

by Lessee.  Lessee shall not use or store in the Premises any hazardous 
or toxic substances, with the sole exception of reasonably necessary 
substances that are kept in reasonable necessary quantities for normal 
office operation, provided that their use and storage are in accordance 
with applicable laws. Lessee shall not do or permit anything to be done on 
the Premises that will obstruct or interfere with the rights of other tenants 
of the Building or injure or annoy them, or use or allow the Premises to be 
used for any unlawful purposes, nor shall Lessee cause, maintain, or 
permit any nuisance or waste on or about the Premises. 

 
3.1(a) At Lessee's sole cost, Lessee shall promptly comply with all laws and  

governmental rules now or later in force; with the requirements of any 
board of fire underwriters or other similar body now or in the future 
constituted; with any direction or occupancy certificate issued by public 
officers ("Legal Requirements"), insofar as they relate to the condition, 
use, or occupancy of the Premises.  Excluded are (a) structural changes 
or changes to the electrical, mechanical, or plumbing systems of the 
Building, all to the extent not necessitated by Lessee's acts or by 
improvements made for Lessee, other than the tenant improvements to be 
made pursuant to this Lease by Lessor, if any; (b) alterations or 
improvements to the Building as a whole or the Premises of tenants 
generally that are not by law the tenant’s responsibility with which to 
comply; and (c)  work necessitated by defects in the construction of the 
Building.  Lessor shall comply in a timely manner with all Legal 
Requirements that are not Lessee's responsibility under this Section to the 
extent noncompliance would adversely affect Lessee's use or occupancy 
of the Premises 

 
3.1(b) Lessee shall comply with all rules adopted by Lessor regarding the use of 

the Building or the Premises which are furnished to Lessee in writing 
(copy of the current rules are attached hereto as Exhibit "A").  Lessor shall 
not be responsible to Lessee for the nonperformance of any of these rules 
by any other tenant or occupant of the Building, but Lessor shall take 
reasonable steps to enforce any rules, the nonperformance of which by 
other tenants materially and adversely affects Lessee in the use of the 
Premises.  However, if any rule conflicts with any term, covenant, or 
condition of this Lease, this Lease shall prevail.  In addition, no rules, or 
any subsequent amendments adopted by Lessor shall alter, reduce, or 
adversely affect any of Lessee's rights or enlarge Lessee's obligations 
under this Lease. 

  

Pg 56 of 130



 3 

3.1(c) Lessor may enter the Premises at reasonable hours and, except in the 
event of an emergency, on reasonable prior notice, to: (a) inspect the 
Premises; (b) exhibit the Premises to prospective purchasers, lenders, or 
tenants; (c) determine whether Lessee is complying with all obligations 
under this Lease; (d) supply janitorial service and any other services to be 
provided by Lessor under this Lease; (e) post notices of no responsibility; 
and (f) make repairs or perform maintenance required of Lessor by this 
Lease, make repairs to any space or utility services, or make repairs 
alterations, or improvements to any other portion of the Building.  
However, all this work shall be done as promptly as reasonably possible 
and cause as little interference to Lessee as reasonably possible.  Subject 
to Lessor's undertakings in the previous sentence, Lessee waives any 
damage claims for inconvenience to or interference with Lessee's 
business or loss of occupancy or quiet enjoyment of the Premises caused 
by Lessor's entry.  At all times Lessor shall have a key with which to 
unlock the doors on the Premises, excluding Lessee's vaults, safes, and 
similar areas designated as secure areas.  In an emergency, Lessor shall 
have the right to use any means that Lessor deems proper to open 
Lessee's doors and enter the Premises.  Entry to the Premises by Lessor 
in an emergency shall not be construed as a forcible or unlawful entry, or 
an actual or constructive eviction of Lessee. 

 
3.2 Both parties agree that rent for the premises includes all costs for utilities 

and custodial maintenance. 
 
 
3.3 Lessor shall maintain the public and Common Areas of the Building, 

including lobbies, stairs, corridors, restrooms, all exterior landscaping 
windows, the mechanical, plumbing, and electrical equipment serving the 
building, and the structure itself, in reasonably good order and condition 
so as to meet the reasonable needs of Lessee, except for damage, 
excluding normal wear and tear, caused by the Lessee.  Damage by 
Lessee shall be repaired by Lessor at Lessee's expense.  The standard of 
maintenance shall equal that of commercial office buildings of a similar 
class in the City of Ukiah. 

 
3.3(a) Lessor shall furnish electricity for lighting and the operation of office, and 

heat and air conditioning to the extent reasonably required for comfortable 
occupancy by lessee. 

 
3.3(b) Lessor shall not be in default under this lease, nor be liable for any 

damages resulting from, nor shall the required rental be abated because 
of: (I) the installation, use or interruption of use of any equipment in 
connection with furnishing the previously listed services, (II) failure to 
furnish or delay in furnishing these services, when failure or delay is 
caused by accident or conditions beyond the reasonable control of Lessor 

Pg 57 of 130



 4 

or by necessary repairs or improvements to the Premises or to the 
building, or (III) the limitation, curtailment, rationing, or restrictions on use 
of water, electricity, gas or any other form of energy serving the Premises 
or the Building.  Lessor shall use reasonable efforts to diligently remedy 
interruptions in the furnishing of these services. 

 
3.3(c) Upon receipt of a bill, Lessee shall reimburse Lessor for the cost of: (I) all 

heat or air conditioning provided to the Premises during hours requested 
by Lessee when those services are not otherwise furnished by Lessor, 
and (II) all power and cooling energy provided for supplementary air 
conditioning facilities in the Premises.  Lessee shall also pay the cost of 
any transformers, additional risers, panel boards, and other facilities, if 
reasonably required to furnish power for supplementary air conditioning 
facilities in the Premises.  The cost of item (I) shall be a per hour charge 
reflecting the electrical energy, labor and fixed plant costs (excluding 
depreciation) of operating the heating and air conditioning system. 

 
3.3(d)  In the event that Lessor, at Lessee's request, provides services to Lessee 

that are not otherwise provided for in this Lease, Lessee shall pay 
Lessor's reasonable charges for these services on billing of Lessor. 

 
3.4 In addition to the monthly rental and other charges to be paid by Lessee 

under this Lease, Lessee shall pay Lessor for all of the following items 
(collectively, "Impositions"): possessory interest or other taxes imposed on 
the leased premises, its contents or the activities conducted in them, to 
the extent not paid to the taxing entity by Lessee. 

 
3.5 Lessee accepts the Premises as being in the condition in which Lessor is 

obligated to deliver the Premises, subject to the tenant improvements, if 
any, that Lessor has agreed to make.  At all times during the term of this 
Lease and at Lessee's sole cost, Lessee shall keep the Premises in good 
condition and repair; exceptions are ordinary wear and tear and damage 
to the Premises by fire, earthquake, or act of God or the elements.  
Lessee waives all rights to make repairs at the expense of Lessor or 
instead to vacate the Premises, and Lessee further waives the provisions 
of Civil Code §§1941 and 1942 with respect to Lessor' obligations under 
this Lease.  At the end of the term of this Lease, Lessee shall surrender to 
Lessor the Premises and all Alterations that are to remain in the Premises 
in the same condition as when received; exceptions are ordinary wear and 
tear and damage by fire, earthquake, or act of God or the elements.  
Lessor has no obligation and has made no promise to alter, remodel, 
improve, repair, decorate, or paint the Premises, except as specifically set 
forth in this Lease.  Lessor has made no representations respecting the 
condition of the Premises or the Building, except as specifically set forth in 
this Lease. 

 

Pg 58 of 130



 5 

 
4. ALTERATIONS 
 
4.1 Lessee shall not make any alterations to the interior or exterior of the 

leased premises without the prior written consent of the Lessor.  Lessor 
may, but need not, require the Lessee to furnish drawings, plans or 
specifications for any proposed alterations, which the Lessor may review 
prior to authorizing any such alterations.   

 
4.2 Lessee shall keep the Premises and the Building free from any liens 

arising out of any work performed, materials furnished, or obligations 
incurred by Lessee.  Lessor may have posted on the Premises any 
notices that may be provided by Law or that Lessor may deem proper for 
the protection of Lessor, the Premises, and the Building from those liens.  
Lessee may contest any lien for which Lessee is responsible under this 
Section, provided that Lessee shall have caused the lien to be bonded 
against. 

 
5. HOLD HARMLESS AND LIABILITY INSURANCE 
 
5.1   Indemnification.  Lessor shall not be liable for and is free from the cost of 

any damages for personal injury or property damage resulting from the 
use made by Lessee of the leased premises, any defective condition or 
faulty construction of the leased premises existing at the time of letting or 
arising thereafter and Lessee covenants and agrees to indemnify and 
save harmless said Lessor and its officers, agents and employees from 
and against any and all claims, liability, loss, cost, or other obligation, 
including reasonable attorneys' fees, on account of or arising out of 
Lessee's use of the leased premises. 

 
5.2   Liability insurance.  Lessee covenants and agrees during the life of this 

Lease at Lessee's sole expense to comply with the requirements of Exhibit 
“B”, Insurance Requirements for Lessees (No Auto Risks) attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference. 

 
 
6. ASSIGNMENT 

Lessee will not assign this Lease, or any interest therein, and will not let or 
underlet the said premises, or any part thereof, without the prior written 
consent of the Lessor. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Pg 59 of 130



 6 

7. OWNERSHIP OF IMPROVEMENTS 
 

If Lessee installs any permanent improvements, in accordance with 
paragraph four of this Lease or otherwise, such improvements shall 
become a part of the leased premises and title to said improvements shall 
be vested in the Lessor upon termination of this Lease.  Lessor shall have 
the right to demand that Lessee restore the premises to the condition it 
was in prior to the date this Lease is made and if such demand is made, 
Lessee shall so restore the premises within ten (10) days of the date such 
notice is given. 

 
8.  TERMINATION 
 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease to the contrary, the 
parties shall have the right to terminate this Lease under the following 
circumstances. 

 
8.1 Upon ninety (90) days prior written notice to the other party Lessor and 

Lessee shall have the mutual right to terminate the Lease for any reason. 
 
8.2 Either party shall have an immediate right to terminate this Lease without 

prior notice to the other party other than that required by law for any 
breach of a term of the Lease by the other party, including, but not limited 
to, the Lessee's obligation to provide liability insurance. 

 
8.3 Even though Lessee has breached this Lease and abandoned the 

Premises, this Lease shall continue in effect for so long as Lessor does 
not terminate Lessee's right to possession, and Lessor may enforce all 
rights and remedies under this Lease, including the right to recover the 
rental as it becomes due under this Lease.  Acts of maintenance or 
preservation, efforts to relet the Premises, or the appointment of a receiver 
upon initiative of Lessor to protect Lessor's interest under this Lease shall 
not constitute a termination of Lessee's right to possession. 

 
8.4 The remedies provided in this Lease are in addition to any other remedies 

available to Lessor at law, in equity, by statute, or otherwise. 
 
8.5 Agreements and provisions to be performed by Lessee under this Lease 

shall be at Lessee's sole cost and without abatement of rental, except as 
specifically provided in this Lease.  If Lessee (I) fails to pay any sum of 
money, other than rental, required under this Lease, or (II) fails to perform 
any other act required of lessee under this Lease, and this failure 
continues for thirty (30) days after notice of the failure by Lessor, or a 
longer period as may be allowed under this Lease, Lessor may, without 
waiving or releasing Lessee from any obligations of Lessee, make 
payment or perform other acts required by this Lease on Lessee's behalf.  

Pg 60 of 130



 7 

All sums paid by Lessor and all necessary incidental costs shall be 
payable to Lessor on demand and shall constitute additional rental under 
this Lease. 

 
8.5(a) If, without objection by Lessor, Lessee holds possession of the Premises 

after expiration of the term of this Lease, Lessee shall become a tenant 
from month-to-month on the terms specified in this lease, except those 
pertaining to term, option to extend, and option to acquire the Building, but 
at a monthly rental equivalent to one hundred ten percent (110%) of the 
then prevailing monthly rental paid by Lessee at the expiration of the term 
of this Lease, payable in advance on or before the first day of each month.  
Each party shall give the other notice of intention to terminate the tenancy 
at least one (1) month prior to the date of termination of a monthly 
tenancy. 

 
8.5(b) If, over Lessor's objection, Lessee holds possession of the Premises after 

expiration of the term of this Lease or expiration of the holdover tenancy, 
Lessee shall be deemed to be a tenant-at-sufferance and, without limiting 
the liability of Lessee for unauthorized occupancy of the Premises, Lessee 
shall indemnify Lessor and any replacement tenant for the Premises for 
any damages or loss suffered by either Lessor or the replacement tenant 
resulting from Lessee's failure to vacate the Premises in a timely manner. 

 
9. ATTORNEY'S FEES 
 

If either party to this Lease prevails in any legal proceeding arising under 
or in connection with the terms of the Lease, that party shall recover its 
reasonable attorney's fees from the other party. 

 
10. NOTICE 
 

Whenever notice is required to be given under this Lease, it shall be 
deemed given when deposited in the U.S. Mail with first class postage 
properly affixed thereto or when personally delivered and addressed as 
follows: 
 

 City of Ukiah       Mendocino County Local Agency 
 300 Seminary Avenue                              Formation Commission  

Ukiah, CA 95482                                 200 S. School Street, Suite K 
                           Ukiah, CA 95482   
                                                                  
 
 
 
 
 

Pg 61 of 130



 8 

11. WAIVER 
Waiver of any breach of this Lease, including the failure to pay rent or 
obtain prior approval for an assignment of the Lease, shall not be deemed 
a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or a different provision of 
the Lease. 

 
 
12. PARAGRAPH HEADINGS 
 

Paragraph headings are included for the convenience of the parties and 
are not intended to define or limit the scope of this Lease. 

 
13. PREVIOUS AGREEMENT 
 

Any and all existing statement or agreements, whether oral or written, or 
renewals thereof between the parties hereto, covering the same subject 
matter, are hereby canceled and superseded by the terms of this Lease, 
and such prior agreements, statements or understandings shall have no 
further force or effect. 

 
14. DUPLICATE ORIGINALS 
 

This Lease may be executed in one or more duplicate originals bearing 
the original signature of both parties and when so executed any such 
duplicate original shall be admissible as proof of the existence and terms 
of this Lease. 
. 

 
 
  

Entered on this date________________________  
 
      
 ________________________________________ 
 Sage Sangiacomo, City Manager, City of Ukiah 
 
 
      
 _________________________________________ 
 Mendocino County Local Agency Formation Commission   
      

Pg 62 of 130



Pg 63 of 130



Pg 64 of 130



Pg 65 of 130



Pg 66 of 130



Pg 67 of 130



Pg 68 of 130



Pg 69 of 130



Pg 70 of 130



Pg 71 of 130



Pg 72 of 130



Pg 73 of 130



Pg 74 of 130



Pg 75 of 130



Pg 76 of 130



Pg 77 of 130



Pg 78 of 130



Pg 79 of 130



Pg 80 of 130



Pg 81 of 130



Pg 82 of 130



Pg 83 of 130



Pg 84 of 130



Pg 85 of 130



Pg 86 of 130



Pg 87 of 130



Pg 88 of 130



Pg 89 of 130



Pg 90 of 130



Pg 91 of 130



Pg 92 of 130



Pg 93 of 130



Pg 94 of 130



Pg 95 of 130



Pg 96 of 130



Pg 97 of 130



Pg 98 of 130



Pg 99 of 130



Pg 100 of 130



Pg 101 of 130



Pg 102 of 130



Pg 103 of 130



Pg 104 of 130



Pg 105 of 130



Pg 106 of 130



Pg 107 of 130



Pg 108 of 130



Pg 109 of 130



Agenda Item No. 7a 

MENDOCINO 
Local Agency Formation Commission 

 

Staff Report 
MEETING March 6, 2023 

TO  Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission  

FROM  Uma Hinman, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT Draft Policy for Commissioner Teleconferencing 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Commission adopt Resolution No. 2022-23-10 approving the policy for Commission Teleconferencing 
consistent with the provisions of Assembly Bill 2449.  

 
BACKGROUND 
At its November 7, 2022 regular meeting, the Commission heard a report on the new rules for 
teleconferencing required under AB 2449 directed the Policies & Procedures Committee to develop a draft 
policy implementing the statute for Commission consideration. The Policies & Procedures Committee met 
on February 16, 2023 to develop a policy for recommendation to the Commission. 
 
The Governor issued a series of executive orders in connection with the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, 
which included a waiver of all physical-presence requirements under the Brown Act. These orders expired 
on September 30, 2021. Assembly Bill 361, which took effect as an urgency measure on September 16, 
2021, allowed local agencies to continue conducting remote meetings during a State of Emergency or until 
January 1, 2024. Upon the termination of the emergency declaration for CA (effective February 28, 2023), 
the temporary, expanded remote meeting benefits of AB 361 will end. 
  
As of March 1, 2023, agencies conducting meetings under the Brown Act will have the choice to return to 
pre-COVID Brown Act meeting rules or follow the new Brown Act provisions under AB 2449 (GOV 54953), 
which allows for limited remote meeting capabilities for elected officials.  
 
The following policy is the current Mendocino LAFCo general policy regarding meetings: 
 

Policy 3.8.1 General  
All meetings conducted by Mendocino LAFCo, including posting and publication of public notices and 
agendas, shall adhere to the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (GOV 54950 et seq.). 

 
The Committee recommends inclusion of a new Policy 3.8.1.1 Commissioner Teleconferencing; see 
attached resolution and draft policy recommended to the Commission for consideration. The new policy 
is consistent with AB 2449 and allows for teleconferencing under limited circumstances.  
 
Also attached is a summary of AB 2449 for information. 
 
Attachment(s): Resolution No. 2022-23-10 with draft policy  
  Summary of AB 2449  

Pg 110 of 130

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billCompareClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB2449&showamends=false


 

LAFCo Resolution No. 2022-23-10 03-06-23  

 

Resolution No. 2022-23-10 
of the Local Agency Formation Commission of Mendocino County 

 
Approving the  

Commissioner Teleconferencing Policy   
 

 WHEREAS, Local Agency Formation Commissions have been created under the provisions of 
the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000, Sections 56000 et. seq. of 
the Government Code, as independent agencies, with the power to adopt policies and procedures to carry 
out their functions, (§56300); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Commission directed the Policies & Procedures Committee to develop a policy 
implementing the new teleconferencing requirements of Assembly Bill 2449 that allow for limited 
teleconferencing for members of governing bodies. 

 
WHEREAS, the Policies & Procedures Committee held a public meeting on the proposed 

commissioner teleconferencing policy on February 16, 2023 and at that meeting, the Committee 
considered the report of the Executive Officer and all oral and written comments with respect to the 
proposed policy, and recommended the policy to the Commission. 

 
WHEREAS, this Commission held a public meeting on the proposed commissioner 

teleconferencing policy and at that meeting this Commission received the recommendation of the Policies 
& Procedures Committee, the report of the Executive Officer, and all oral and written comments with 
respect to the proposed policy. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Local Agency Formation Commission of the County of Mendocino 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE and ORDER the adoption of the Commissioner 
Teleconferencing Policy as set forth in Exhibit A. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mendocino LAFCo Policies & Procedures Manual 
be updated accordingly. 
 

PASSED and ADOPTED by the Local Agency Formation Commission of Mendocino 
County this 6th day of March 2023 by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  

NOES:  
ABSTAIN:  
ABSENT:  

      _____________________________________ 

MAUREEN MULHEREN, Commission Chair 
 
ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
UMA HINMAN, Executive Officer 

  

Pg 111 of 130



 

LAFCo Resolution No. 2022-23-10 03-06-23  

Exhibit A 
 

Policy 3.8.1.1 Commissioner Teleconferencing 
Regular meetings of the Commission shall adhere to the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act 
(GOV 54950 et seq) and the provisions of GOV 54953, which allow for teleconferencing under 
specific conditions.  
 
To promote transparency and public participation, regular meetings of the Commission will be held 
in a hybrid format provided the technology to do so is readily available. Commissioners shall 
participate in-person for all Commission meetings, unless circumstances exist to justify the use of 
“Expanded Teleconferencing Procedures.” Should a Commissioner request attendance by 
teleconference for “just cause” or “emergency circumstances,” as defined in GOV 54953(j), the 
requirements set forth in the statute shall apply.  
 
Commissioners may attend regular Commission meetings by teleconference not to exceed two times 
per year. Commissioners must make such requests of the Commission prior to or at the start of a 
regular meeting, stating the reason (“just cause” or ”emergency circumstances”) and a brief 
description of the circumstances relating to the need to appear remotely. The Commission shall take 
action on the request at the beginning of the meeting.  
 
3.8.1.1.1 Global Teleconferencing Procedures 
At the discretion of the Commission and/or the Executive Officer, any employee, consultant or 
individual presenting or attending a meeting of the Commission, other than a member of the 
Commission, shall be permitted to attend via teleconference without compliance or conditions set 
forth herein.  
 
To the extent a commissioner wishes to attend a meeting via teleconference, the commissioner shall 
generally be required to comply with the “Standard Teleconferencing Procedures” below, unless the 
circumstances exist to justify the use of “Expanded Teleconferencing Procedures.” 
 
3.8.1.1.2 Standard Teleconferencing Procedures 
Members of the Commission, inclusive of all bodies and committees required to comply with the 
Brown Act, may attend a meeting via teleconference if the following conditions are satisfied: 
1. At least a quorum of commissioners participates in the meeting from locations within the 

County;  
2. The agenda posted for the meeting is posted at all teleconference locations, each of which are 

identified in the notice and the agenda for the meeting; and 
3. Each teleconference location is accessible to the public, and the public is permitted to comment 

at each teleconference location. 
 
3.8.1.1.3 Expanded Teleconferencing Procedures 
A commissioner may attend a regular meeting via videoconference only without the need to comply 
with the Standard Teleconferencing Procedure requirements to notice and post agenda locations or 
make such locations accessible to the public, if the following conditions are satisfied: 
1. At least a quorum of the commissioners participate in-person from a single physical location 

accessible to the public and as clearly identified in the posted agenda; 
2. The public is permitted to attend the meeting either by teleconference or videoconference in a 

manner such that the public may participate in real-time during the meeting; 
3. Notice of the means by which the public may remotely participate and offer comment during 

the meeting is included within the posted agenda; 

Pg 112 of 130

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billCompareClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB2449&showamends=false


 

LAFCo Resolution No. 2022-23-10 03-06-23  

4. Commissioners attending remotely have either “just cause” or “emergency circumstance”, as 
defined in GOV 54953, that justifies their attendance via videoconference: 

5. A commissioner who has not attended a regular meeting remotely on the basis of “just cause” 
more than two times in a calendar year or on the basis of “emergency circumstance” for longer 
than three consecutive months.  

 
In order to utilize the Expanded Teleconferencing Procedures, a commissioner shall: 
1. For “just cause” circumstance, notify the Commission at the earliest opportunity, including at 

the start of a regular meeting, of their need to participate remotely for just cause, including a 
general description of the circumstance relating to their need to appear remotely at the given 
meeting; 

2. For “emergency circumstance,” request to participate at a meeting due to an “emergency 
circumstance” as soon as possible, preferably before the posting of the agenda but up to the 
start of the meeting, with such request including a general description of the circumstances 
relating to their need to appear remotely at the given meeting, though any description need not 
exceed 20 words and need not include any medical information exempt from disclosure by law; 

3. The commissioner shall disclose at the meeting before any action is taken whether any other 
individuals 18 years of age or older are present in the room at the remote location with the 
member, and the general nature of the Member’s relationship to such individuals;  

4. Participate through videoconferencing, with both visual and audio technology. 
 
Upon request of a commissioner to utilize the Expanded Teleconference Procedures, the 
Commission shall: 
1. Take action by majority vote on a request to participate remotely due to an “emergency 

circumstance” at its earliest opportunity, which may be taken as a noticed agenda item or as an 
added item if sufficient time was not provided to place the proposed action on the agenda; 

2. In the event of disruption within the power of the Commission that prevents the broadcasting 
of the meeting to members of the public, or in the event of disruption within LAFCo’s control 
that prevents members of the public from offering public comment using the teleconferencing 
or videoconferencing options, take no further action during a meeting until such access is 
restored. 

 
3.8.1.1.4 Miscellaneous Provisions 
With respect to Standard Teleconferencing Procedures and Expanded Teleconferencing Procedures 
set forth herein, such are intended to comply with GOV 54953(b) and (f), respectively, and, as such, 
in the event of conflict between this Policy and such statutory provisions, the statutory provisions 
shall control and be implemented as if set forth in this Policy. 

 

Pg 113 of 130

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billCompareClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB2449&showamends=false
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billCompareClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB2449&showamends=false


Summary of AB 2449 Requirements 
 
The passage of AB 2449 allows for limited use of hybrid meetings in the absence of a declaration of state 
of emergency. Under the provisions of the recently signed AB 2449, agencies will not be obligated to post 
agendas at all teleconference locations, will not be obligated to identify all teleconference locations in the 
meeting agendas, and will not be obligated to make each teleconference location open to the public. 
 
For an agency to proceed under the procedures established by AB 2449, meetings must have at least a 
quorum of the members of the legislative body participating in-person from a singular, physical location 
clearly identified on the agenda, be open to the public, and be situated within the boundaries of the 
territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction.  
 
Remote participation under AB 2449 must be done for specified reasons — either because of a “just 
cause” or as a result of “emergency circumstances.” The two cases have different requirements that must 
be observed and have their own unique restrictions. See table on next page for more details. The agency 
must also be prepared to host a robust remote meeting — under the terms of AB 2449, an agency must 
provide at least one of the following so that the public may remotely observe the meeting and provide 
comments:  

• A two-way audiovisual platform (defined to mean an online platform that provides participants 
with the ability to participate in a meeting via both an interactive video conference and a two-
way telephonic function); and/or  

• A two-way telephonic service and a live webcasting of the meeting (defined to mean a telephone 
service that does not require internet access, is not provided as part of a two-way audiovisual 
platform, and allows participants to dial a telephone number to listen and verbally participate) 

 
Conditions under which AB 2449 may be used 
Board/Commission members are individually tasked with observing certain requirements before they can 
make use of AB 2449’s terms. It is incumbent upon the individual board/commission members themselves 
to follow certain requirements laid out in the bill; save for some overlapping obligations, the requirements 
differ based on whether the member’s remote participation is arising out of a “just cause” or “emergency 
circumstances,” as shown in the table below: 
 

“Just Cause” “Emergency Circumstances” 

“Just cause” means any of the following: 

• A childcare or caregiving need of a child, 
parent, grandparent, grandchild, sibling, 
spouse, or domestic partner that requires 
them to participate remotely 

• A contagious illness that prevents a member 
from attending in person 

• A need related to a physical or mental 
disability not otherwise accommodated 

• Travel while on official business of the 
legislative body or another state or local 
agency 

 
Procedures 
➢ The member notifies the legislative body at 
the earliest opportunity possible (including at the 

“Emergency circumstances” means a physical or 
family medical emergency that prevents a 
member from attending in person. 
 
Procedures 
➢ The member requests the legislative body to 
allow them to participate in the meeting 
remotely due to “emergency circumstances” and 
the legislative body takes action to approve the 
request. The member shall make this request to 
participate remotely at a meeting as soon as 
possible. The legislative body shall request a 
general description of the circumstances relating 
to their need to appear remotely at the given 
meeting.  
 

Pg 114 of 130



“Just Cause” “Emergency Circumstances” 

start of a regular meeting) of their need to 
participate remotely for “just cause,” including a 
general description of the circumstances relating 
to their need to appear remotely at the given 
meeting. 
 
Remote participation for “just cause” reasons 
shall not be utilized by any member of the 
legislative body for more than two (2) meetings 
per calendar year. 

The general description of the circumstances 
does not require the member to disclose any 
medical diagnosis or disability, or any personal 
medical information that is already exempt under 
existing law, such as the Confidentiality of 
Medical Information Act. 
 
➢ The member shall make a separate request for 
each meeting in which they seek to participate 
remotely. 
 
The legislative body may take action on a request 
to participate remotely at the earliest 
opportunity. If the request does not allow 
sufficient time to place proposed action on such a 
request on the posted agenda for the meeting for 
which the request is made, the legislative body 
may take action at the beginning of the meeting 
in accordance with existing law. 

 

Should either case (just cause”/”emergency circumstances”) be declared, the member shall: 

• Publicly disclose at the meeting, before any action is taken, whether any other individuals 18 
years of age or older are present in the room at the remote location with the member, and the 
general nature of the member’s relationship with any such individual(s); and   

• Participate through both audio and visual technology. 

Under neither case (“just cause”/”emergency circumstances”) do AB 2449’s provisions permit any 
member of a legislative body to participate in meetings of the legislative body solely by teleconference 
from a remote location for a period of: 

• More than three (3) consecutive months or 20 percent of the regular meetings for the local 
agency within a calendar year, or 

• More than two (2) meetings if the legislative body regularly meets fewer than 10 times per 
calendar year. 

 
 

Pg 115 of 130



Agenda Item No. 7b 

MENDOCINO 
Local Agency Formation Commission 

Staff Report 
DATE:  March 6, 2023 

TO:  Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission  

FROM:  Uma Hinman, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Mid-Year Budget Review and Work Plan Report for FY 2022-23 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
Receive and file report. 
 

BACKGROUND 
Mid-year budget reviews are intended to review expenses and revenues half-way through a budget year 
to determine whether any adjustments are needed before the end of the fiscal year. The mid-year budget 
review also assists with development of the next fiscal year budget and work plan.  
 
Mid-Year Budget Review 
The mid-year budget review is an opportunity to review itemized operating expenses and make 
adjustments as necessary. Attachment 2 summarizes the expenditures as of January 31, 2023 by account.  
 
As shown in Attachment 1, the Commission adopted a FY 2022-23 budget of $263,800. Table 1 
summarizes the adopted budget, the current expenditure totals and percent of budget expended as of 
January 31, 2023 (see Attachment 2 for additional detail). The current Work Plan includes two single 
agency MSR/SOI studies and two regional multi-agency water/wastewater agencies MSR/SOI studies.  

The budget review indicates staffing and work plan costs are within budget. Two categories, Accounts 
5500 Office Rent and 6670 GIS Contract with County, are projected to run overbudget by the end of the 
fiscal year. Under Policy 5.1.6 Budget Adjustments, the Executive Officer may approve expenditures 
exceeding individual account budgets by up to five percent, not to exceed $3,000.  

It is anticipated that the projected overages in Account 5500 will be within the policy allowances and will 
be covered by underutilized budget in other categories. While it is anticipated that Account 6670 will go 
overbudget by the end of the fiscal year, no budget amendment is recommended at this time since staff 
is unsure of additional need for GIS services. 

The following notes summarize the overview: 
 

1. Revenues for this fiscal year include apportionment fees totaling $265,000, split equally among 
the categories of Cities/County/Special Districts. Additional revenues include overhead collected 
through service fees and bank interest, which at mid-year are a combined sum of $3,666. 

 
2. Expenses as of January 31, 2023 were $111,234, mostly allocated to Basic Services/Staffing and 

office operations (Services and Supplies).  
 
 

Pg 116 of 130

https://www.mendolafco.org/files/3070901c8/FINAL+Adopted+Mendo+LAFCo+PP+Manual+2018+upd+5-11-21.pdf


 
3. Applications are processed and billed to the applicant per the adopted services rates, which were 

first adopted in early 2022 and went into effect July 1, 2022. The service rates allow for recapture 
of some overhead costs. “Contract Staff” is the amount billed at contract staff rates that is passed 
through to the consultant; the “Overhead” is used to offset operational and work plan costs. 
“Direct Costs” are those items that are billed at cost to the applicant (i.e., public notice publishing 
and mailing costs). 
 

Table 2. Mid-Year Summary of Application Expenses  

Contract Staff Overhead Direct Costs Total 

$9,638 $3,488 $100 $13,226 

 
Application processing has been focused on a number of projects this fiscal year, including several 
City of Ukiah applications and an application from the Elk Community Services District for 
activation of latent powers. Activities on applications has primarily been focused on the City of 
Ukiah’s proposal to annex City-owned properties and a joint application with the Ukiah Valley 
Sanitation District to extend out-of-agency services to the Ford Road, Kunzler Ranch Road, and 
Carter Lane area located northeast of City limits. 
 

4. Reserves are on target at $115,995. 

• $50,000 for legal reserves; as directed by Commission 

• $65,995 for operational reserves; policy specifies 25% of operational budget (target $65,950) 
 
5. Contingencies for Work Plan implementation are at $30,815. The contingencies are intended to 

cover unanticipated work plan costs such as overages on MSR/SOI and special study development 
(e.g., consultant contracts, adjusting work plan to include additional agencies or complicated 
subjects, etc.). Additionally, the contingencies may be used to cover CEQA related costs that are 
not included in the Work Plan budget, which normally assumes application of Exemptions.  

 
Work Plan Status Report 
Staff have completed two of the four scheduled MSR/SOI update tasks: City of Ukiah and the Ukiah Valley 
Sanitation District (UVSD). The remaining two Work Plan tasks are regional water and wastewater districts 
that are divided into coastal and inland agencies.  

Delays in the regional MSR/SOI studies have primarily been related to application workload, which is 
prioritized, and staff vacancy. Progress on the Work Plan is summarized in the following table.  
 

Table 3. Summary of Work Plan Tasks and Status 

Remaining Work Plan Tasks 2021-22 Budget ($) Status (% complete) 

City of Ukiah* 15,000 100 

Ukiah Valley Sanitation District* 10,000 100 

Coastal Water/Wastewater Districts 20,000 0 

Inland Water/Wastewater Districts (not including UVSD) 25,000 0 

* Initiated in FY 2021-22 

 

Table 1. Mid-Year Summary of Expenses 

Mid-Year Expense Summary Adopted ($) Mid-Year Total ($) % of total 

Basic Services (Staffing)  125,100 57,450 46 

Services and Supplies  68,700 30,640 45 

Work Plan  70,000 23,144 33 

Expenses Total 263,800 111,234 42 

Pg 117 of 130



The December 2022 completion of the City of Ukiah and the Ukiah Valley Sanitation District MSR/SOI 
Updates were major milestones for LAFCo. The highly collaborative process closely paralleled the City’s 
General Plan Update and included regular coordination meetings between LAFCo, City and UVSD staff, as 
well as agency staff support in development of the studies. This was the first update of the SOIs for both 
agencies since their establishment in 1984. 
 
Coastal Region Water and Wastewater Districts MSR/SOI Updates 
Six (6) special districts and 10 mutual water companies (MWC) have been identified for the coastal water 
and wastewater districts MSR/SOI updates. Originally scheduled and budgeted for fiscal year 2022-23 to 
include four (4) special districts and four (4) MWCs, staff have since identified an additional two (2) 
wastewater agencies and six (6) mutual water companies for inclusion. 
 

Table 4. Coastal Region Water and Wastewater Districts scheduled for MSR/SOI Updates 

# Water Districts W1 WW2 Mutual Water Companies 

1 Gualala Community Services District  X Albion MWC 

2 Caspar South Water District  X Anchor Bay Water Works 

3 Elk County Water District X  Big River Vista MWC 

4 Irish Beach Water District X  Caspar South Service Company 

5 Mendocino County Water Works District No. 2  X Hills Ranch MWC 

6 Pacific Reefs California Water District X  North Gualala Water Company 

7 Westport County Water District X X Point Arena Water Works 

8    Point of View MWC 

9    Seafair Road and Water 
Company 

10    Surfwood MWC 
1 Water service provider 
2 Wastewater service provider 

 
With the completion of the City of Ukiah and UVSD MSR/SOI Updates in December, staff has been focused 
on application processing, which takes precedence over the Work Plan. Staff anticipates initiating the 
coastal region water and wastewater districts MSR/SOI updates in early April. 
 
Note that under Assembly Bill (AB) 54, MWCs are required to provide service area maps and service 
information upon request by LAFCo. While a full MSR analysis will not be completed for MWCs, their 
inclusion in the context of regional water discussion and analyses is important, particularly as the State 
Water Resources Control Board has the authority to require consolidation under AB 88 as well as 
continued regional drought planning. LAFCo prepared a report on MWCs in 2018. 
 
Inland Region Water and Wastewater Districts MSR/SOI Updates 
The inland region water and wastewater districts MSR/SOI updates will follow the coastal region updates. 
Originally, a total of eight agencies were identified for the inland region districts: four (4) 
water/wastewater districts and four (4) mutual water companies. Staff have since expanded the list to 
include a total of eight (8) water/wastewater districts and eight (8) mutual water companies.  
 

Table 5. Inland Region Water and Wastewater Districts scheduled for MSR/SOI Updates 

# Water Districts W1 WW2 O3 Mutual Water Companies 

1 Calpella County Water District X X  Branscomb MWC 

2 Hopland Public Utilities District X X  Dos Rios MWC 

3 Laytonville County Water District  X  Lakeview Mutual MWC 

4 Millview County Water District  X  Meadow Estates MWC 

5 Potter Valley Irrigation District   X Pine Mountain MWC 

Pg 118 of 130

https://www.mendolafco.org/files/1701217a8/2018+Mutual+Water+Company+Profile+Report+w+maps.pdf


Table 5. Inland Region Water and Wastewater Districts scheduled for MSR/SOI Updates 

# Water Districts W1 WW2 O3 Mutual Water Companies 

6 Redwood Valley County Water District X X  River Estates MWC 

7 Round Valley County Water District   X Rogina Water Company 

8 Willow County Water District X   Russian River Estates MWC 
1 Water service provider 
2 Wastewater service provider 
3 Other services provided (i.e. irrigation water) 

 
Staff Activities Through First Half of FY 2022-23 
In addition to the Work Plan, the first half of this fiscal year has been focused on application processing 
and responding to inquiries and researching issues brought forward by special districts and landowners.  
 
The following summary of staff activities is intended to be an informative overview and is not all-inclusive: 
 

• Processing a joint Out-of- Agency Agreement application for the City of Ukiah and the UVSD.  

• Regular coordination meetings with City of Ukiah and Ukiah Valley Sanitation District staff 
regarding development of the MSR/SOI Updates and proposals to support development in the 
region. 

• Coordination with County staff regarding County Service Area 3 Sherwood Road Pilot Project. 

• Provided initial consultation with two additional agencies (Anderson Valley CSD and Gualala 
Community Services District) on application needs and process. 

• Policy development in response to the passing of AB 2449 regarding teleconferencing meetings. 

• City of Ukiah General Plan Update CEQA review and comment letters. 

• Develop and implement a request for proposals for legal counsel services. 

• Implement two special district member elections. 

• Respond to Mendocino Coast Health Care District board members’ inquiries regarding laws and 
best practices for board management and administration. 

• Respond to numerous inquiries including a special district formation on the south coast for 
recreation, options for consolidation of administration for cemetery districts, and potential 
landowner-initiated annexation/detachment of individual parcels. 

• Respond to Public Records Act requests. 

• Coordinate FY 2021-22 annual audit with CPA and Treasurer. 
 

Anticipated Staff Activities for Remainder of FY 2022-23 
Staff will remain focused on progressing Work Plan tasks and processing several applications and 
proposals that are on file and anticipated in the coming months. Following is a brief summary of 
anticipated tasks through the end of the fiscal year: 

• FY 2023-24 Budget and Work Plan development. 

• City of Ukiah application proposing annexation of City-owned properties. 

• City of Ukiah application proposing annexation of Western Hills Properties. 

• Elk Community Services District proposal to activate latent powers. 

• Coastal region water/wastewater MSR/SOI updates. 

• Research and respond to public inquiries. 

• Completion of tasks listed above (SD regular member election, legal counsel services contract, 
etc.) and staff recruitment. 

Attachments  
1. Adopted FY 2022-23 Budget and Work Program 
2. Mid-Year Budget Review Spreadsheet s (expenses and revenues) 

Pg 119 of 130



Attachments  
1. Adopted FY 2022-23 Budget and Work Program 
2. Mid-Year Budget Review Spreadsheet s (expenses and revenues) 

Pg 120 of 130



Pg 121 of 130



Pg 122 of 130



Pg 123 of 130



Pg 124 of 130



Mendocino LAFCo Budget Tracking

REVENUE BUDGET YTD Subtotal Balance 

4020 OPERATING INCOME (APPORTIONMENTS) 265,000.00$      120,000.00$   145,000.00$   

4800 MISCELLANEOUS (SERVICE FEES OH, COPIES) 3,609.87$       (3,609.87)$      

4910 INTEREST 100.00$              55.98$             44.02$             

Income/Fees Subtotals 265,100.00$      

8000 APPLICATIONS
PRIOR FY 

DEPOSITS
 YTD Subtotal 

 Total Deposit 

TD 

8010
City of Ukiah Detachment of UVSD lands (D-2014-

8010) 19,032.75$        -$                 19,032.75$     

8022
City of Ukiah North Annexation Pre-Application (P-

2020-01) 1,500.00$          -$                 1,500.00$       

8024
Millview CWD Annexation Pre-Application (P-2020-

04) 3,500.00$          -$                 3,500.00$       

8025
City of Ukiah Annexation of City-Owned Properties (A-

2021-01) 5,000.00$          -$                 5,000.00$       

8028 Elk CSD Activation of Latent Powers (L-2022-01)
3,000.00$          2,000.00$       5,000.00$       

8029
City of Ukiah Annexation of Western Hills Properties 

(A-2022-02) 5,000.00$          -$                 5,000.00$       

8030
City of Ukiah/UVSD Application for Out Of Agency 

Services  (O-2022-03) -$                    2,500.00$       2,500.00$       

8601 Sustainable Ag Lands Committee Grant 3,225.00$          2,525.00$       5,750.00$       

Application Subtotals 7,025.00$       47,282.75$     

REVENUE TOTAL 7,025.00$       

 MENDOCINO LAFCO FY 2022-23 BUDGET TRACKING

Pg 125 of 130



Mendocino LAFCo Budget Tracking

EXPENSES BUDGET
Total 

Expenses YTD

Budget 

Balance

% Budget 

Expended

5300 Basic Services - EO/Analyst/Clerk 125,100.00$     57,450.00$    67,650.00$     54%

Unfunded Mandates (Public Records Requests) -$                

5500 Rent 6,500.00$         3,735.00$      2,765.00$       43%

5600 Office Expenses 3,300.00$         1,936.41$      1,363.59$       41%

5700 Internet & Website Costs 2,500.00$         1,109.36$      1,390.64$       56%

5900 Publication & Legal Notices 2,000.00$         507.54$          1,492.46$       75%

6000 Televising Meetings 2,000.00$         731.15$          1,268.85$       63%

6100 Audit Services 3,800.00$         3,750.00$      50.00$            1%

6200 Bookkeeping 4,500.00$         2,310.00$      2,190.00$       49%

6300 Legal Counsel (S Browne) 19,000.00$       6,300.00$      12,700.00$     67%

6400 A-87 Costs County Services 2,100.00$         -$                2,100.00$       100%

6500 Insurance - General Liability 3,200.00$         2,799.92$      400.08$          13%

6600 Memberships (CALAFCO/CSDA) 3,700.00$         3,579.00$      121.00$          3%

6670 GIS Contract with County 2,000.00$         1,789.64$      210.36$          11%

6740 In-County Travel & Stipends 4,000.00$         199.13$          3,800.87$       95%

6750 Travel & Lodging Expenses 6,000.00$         1,268.52$      4,731.48$       79%

6800 Conferences (Registrations) 4,100.00$         625.00$          3,475.00$       85%

7000 Work Plan (MSRs and SOIs) 70,000.00$       23,143.75$    46,856.25$     67%

Subtotals 263,800.00$     111,234.42$  

8000 APPLICATIONS
 TOTAL 

DEPOSITS TD 

 Total 

Expenses TD 

 Deposit 

Balance 

8010
City of Ukiah Detachment of UVSD lands (D-2014-

8010) 19,032.75$       14,518.25$    4,514.50$       

8022
City of Ukiah North Annexation Pre-Application (P-

2020-01) 1,500.00$         1,122.00$      378.00$          

8024
Millview CWD Annexation Pre-Application (P-2020-

04) 3,500.00$         3,609.50$      (109.50)$         

8025
City of Ukiah Annexation of City-Owned Properties (A-

2021-01) 5,000.00$         3,753.75$      1,246.25$       

8028 Elk CSD Activation of Latent Powers (L-2022-01)
5,000.00$         4,236.25$      763.75$          

8029
City of Ukiah Annexation of Western Hills Properties 

(A-2022-02) 5,000.00$         250.00$          4,750.00$       

8030
City of Ukiah/UVSD Out of Agency Service Agreement 

(O-2022-03) 2,500.00$         7,905.84$      (5,405.84)$     

8601 Sustainable Ag Lands Committee Grant
5,750.00$         5,750.00$      -$                

Contract Staff Billing Subtotal 9,638.75$       6,137.16$       

Service Fees Overhead (OH) Subtotal 3,487.50$       

Application Expenses Total 13,225.84$    

EXPENSES TOTAL 124,460.26$  

Pg 126 of 130



Agenda Item No. 8a 

MENDOCINO 
Local Agency Formation Commission 

 

Staff Report 
MEETING March 6, 2023 

TO  Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission  

FROM  Uma Hinman, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT Applications and Work Load  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the Commission receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND 

The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 delegates Local Agency 
Formation Commissions (LAFCos) with regulatory and planning duties to coordinate the logical formation 
and development of local government agencies. This includes approving or disapproving proposals for 
reorganizations (i.e., annexations, detachments, dissolutions, etc.), activation of latent powers, sphere of 
influence amendments, and outside service agreements. 
 
LAFCo proceedings for jurisdictional changes are generally initiated by outside applicants through 
petitions (landowners or voters) and resolutions (local agencies). LAFCos may also initiate jurisdictional 
changes to form, consolidate, or dissolve special districts if consistent with the recommendations of 
approved municipal service reviews.  
 
The following is a status report on the active proposals currently on file with the Commission as well as 
anticipated filings based on ongoing discussions with proponents. Also included is a summary of progress 
on the Work Plan scheduled for the current fiscal year. The item is for information and satisfies LAFCo’s 
reporting requirement for current and future applications.  
 
ACTIVE PROPOSALS 

This item provides the Commission its regular update on active proposals on file as well as identifies future 
proposals staff anticipates being filed with LAFCo in the near term based on discussions with local agencies 
and proponents. All active and future proposals are also summarized in Attachment 1. 
 
City of Ukiah/Ukiah Valley Sanitation District Out of Agency Service Agreement for Wastewater Services 
(File No. O-2022-03) 
On November 18, 2022, the City of Ukiah and the Ukiah Valley Sanitation District (UVSD) submitted a joint 
application to extend wastewater services to areas outside both the City of Ukiah and the UVSD 
boundaries and within the City of Ukiah’s Sphere of Influence. The proposed service areas include several 
parcels in the Masonite/Ford Road area and a parcel in The Forks area. The proposal is submitted with an 
Agreement Between the Ukiah Valley Sanitation District and the City of Ukiah Regarding Provision of 
Interim Sewer Services and Out of Area Service Agreements, which specifies the interim service provider 

Pg 127 of 130



for the parcels to be the UVSD until the area is annexed into the City of Ukiah. Public hearing scheduled 
for March 6, 2023. 
 
City of Ukiah Annexation of City-Owned Properties (File No. A-2021-01) 
On February 22, 2021, LAFCo received an application from the City of Ukiah proposing to annex City-
owned parcels that are used for government purposes and consisting of approximately 446 acres in total. 
Parcels include the City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant, solid waste transfer station, a portion of the 
municipal airport and open space. A revised application was submitted to LAFCo on February 25, 2022 
and was referred to affected agencies and County Auditor and Assessor. LAFCo and City staff have 
established regularly scheduled coordination meetings for the proposal. The application is incomplete 
pending a tax share agreement.  
 
City of Ukiah Annexation of Western Hills (Hull Properties) (File No. A-2022-02) 
On June 8, 2022, the City of Ukiah submitted an application to annex approximately 707 acres in the 
Western Hills for open space preservation, while allowing the potential for future low density residential 
up to 14 dwelling units on the 55 easternmost acres. The application is incomplete pending a tax share 
agreement and submittal of additional materials. 
 
Elk Community Services District Activation of Latent Powers for Wastewater Services (File No. L-2022-01) 
On April 8, 2022, the ECSD submitted an application proposing to activate latent powers for the provision 
of wastewater services. The District will be assuming ownership and operation of a community leach field 
within the community of Elk. The application has been referred to affected agencies and a Notice of Filing 
sent to the County Assessor and Auditor-Controller to initiate the tax share negotiation process in 
accordance with Revenue & Tax Code Section 99. A change in project description required a revised Notice 
of Filing be distributed, which was completed in mid-October. The application is incomplete. 
 
 
POTENTIAL FUTURE PROPOSALS 

LAFCo staff has been made aware of the following potential future proposals that may come before the 
Commission for consideration. Also see Attachment 1 Summary Table – Application Activity and Potential 
Future Proposals. 
 
Anderson Valley Community Services District Annexation of Sphere of Influence 
The Anderson Valley Community Services District (AVCSD) is coordinating with LAFCo staff on application 
requirements for annexation of the District’s Sphere of Influence (SOI) for fire services. An application is 
anticipated in the first quarter of 2023. 
 
 
WORK PLAN 

Local policy directs the Commission to annually adopt a Work Plan for purposes of providing a 
comprehensive overview of municipal service reviews and sphere of influence updates over the course of 
the fiscal year. This report provides an update on progress made in terms of accomplishing the activities 
scheduled in the Work Plan. This report also serves to inform the Commission of any changes in 
circumstances or priorities. See Attachment 2 Summary Table – Work Plan Tracking and Status. 
 
Attachments 

1. Summary Table – Application Activity and Potential Future Proposals 
2. Summary Table – Work Plan Tracking and Status   

Pg 128 of 130



Attachment 1. Summary Table – Application Activity and Potential Future Proposals 
 

APPLICATION ACTIVITY  
Project status as of March 1, 2023 

LAFCo 
File No.1 Applicant Project Name 

Date 
Application 

Received 
Certificate 

of Filing 

LAFCo 
Hearing 

Date 

Certificate 
of 

Completion 

BOE 
Submittal 

Date Additional Comments 

O-2022-03 Ukiah/ 
UVSD 

Out of Agency Service Agreement 
for Wastewater Services 

11/18/2022 N/A 3/6/2023  N/A Public hearing scheduled 
for March 6, 2023 

A-2022-02 Ukiah City of Ukiah Annexation of 
Western Hills (Hull Properties) 

6/8/2022     Application incomplete 
(tax share agreement, 
information) 

L-2022-01 ECSD Elk Community Services District 
Activation of Latent Powers for 
Wastewater Services 

4/8/2022     Application under 
review; revised Notice of 
Filing distributed 
10/2022 

A-2021-01 Ukiah City of Ukiah Annexation of City-
Owned Properties 

3/1/2021 
2/25/2022 

    Application incomplete 
(tax share agreement) 

Potential Future Proposals 

N/A AVCSD Annexation of SOI for Fire Services      Coordination on 
application needs 

 
1Key: A – Annexation 
 C – Consolidation 
 D – Detachment 
 F – Formation 

 L – Activation of Latent Powers 
 O – Out of Agency Service Agreement 
 P – Pre-application Review Request 
 R – Reorganization

  

Pg 129 of 130



Attachment 2. Summary Table – Work Plan Tracking and Status 
 

FY 2021-22 ESTIMATED WORK PLAN IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE AND STATUS 
Work Plan status as of March 1, 2023 

  
Subject to Change: The estimated schedule and costs for the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Work Plan are subject to change based on agency responsiveness, timely provision of 
requested information, complexity of issues, level of public and affected agency controversy, and changing needs and priorities. 

CEQA: Based on LAFCo practice, the work plan assumes minimal costs for CEQA compliance related to preparing a Notice of Exemption, unless an agency proposes a non-
coterminous SOI and pays for any necessary studies and preparation of a Negative Declaration or Environmental Impact Report. 

Rolling Work Plan: It is difficult to completely contain staff activities in a single fiscal year; therefore, completion of a study may roll over to the next fiscal year. This 
estimated work plan implementation schedule is intended to enhance communication and transparency. 

  

Agency 
Request for 
Information 

Admin Draft 
Public 

Workshop 
Public 

Hearing 
Final 
Study 

Status/Notes 

County Service Area 3 Complete Complete 4/4/22  
6/7/22 

7/11/22 
7/31/22 Study Complete  

Ukiah Valley Sanitation 
District 

Complete Complete 
9/12/22 
11/7/22 

12/19/22 12/23/22 

A joint public workshop on the MSR portion of the study was held 
in September. A second joint workshop on the SOI portion of the 
study was held in November. The public hearing was held in 
December and resulted in adoption of the studies and SOI. 

City of Ukiah Complete Complete 
9/12/22 
11/7/22 

12/19/22 12/23/22 

A joint public workshop on the MSR portion of the study was held 
in September. A second joint workshop on the SOI portion of the 
study was held in November. The public hearing was held in 
December and resulted in adoption of the studies and SOI. 

Coastal Water Districts  Pending Pending     

Inland Water Districts Pending Pending     

 

Pg 130 of 130


	2023-03-06 Agenda March Regular Meeting.pdf (p.1-3)
	2023-03-06 Item 3a Commission Appointments.pdf (p.4)
	2023-03-06 Item 3b Officers and Committee Appointments.pdf (p.5)
	2023-03-06 Item 4a Draft Jan. 9 Regular Mtg Minutes.pdf (p.6-8)
	2023-03-06 Item 4b January Claims.pdf (p.9-23)
	2023-03-06 Item 4d LAFCo 2021-22 Final Audit.pdf (p.24-40)
	2023-03-06 Item 4e UVCC Lease.pdf (p.41)
	2023-03-06 Item 5a CoU-UVSD OASA Staff Report.pdf (p.42-83)
	2023-03-06 Item 7a AB 2449 Policy.pdf (p.84-89)
	2023-03-06 Item 7a AB 2449 Policy.pdf (p.1)
	2023-03-06 Policy Resolution.pdf (p.2-4)

	2023-03-06 Item 7b, Mid year budget review.pdf (p.90-100)
	2023-03-06 Item 8a Applications and Work Load.pdf (p.101-104)
	2023-03-06 Item 4c February Claims.pdf (p.1)
	2023-03-06 Item 4c2 February Budget Tracking.pdf (p.2)
	2023-03-06 Item 4c2 February Budget Tracking2.pdf (p.3)
	2023-03-06 Item 4c2 February WP Tracking.pdf (p.4)
	2023, 02 Feb H&AConsulting Invoice.pdf (p.5-8)
	2023-02 Invoice-1228.pdf (p.9-11)
	2023-02 Invoice-1229.pdf (p.12-13)

